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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(2) Background information

The State Department for Housing and Urban development falls under the Mmsiry of Transport,

Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works,

The Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works was formed
on 11" May, 2020. At cabinet level, the Ministry is represented by the Cabinet Secretary wha is

responsible for the general policy and strategic direction.

Vision

To be a globally competitive organization in provision of adequate and decent housing in a sustainable
environment and coordinated urban development

Mission

To facilitate access to adequate and decent housing and prepare urban plans for sustainable
development

Our Core Functions

The functions for the State Department for Housing and Urban Development in the Ministry of
Transport, Infrastructure, Housing and Urban Development are derived from the Executive Order

No.1/2020,
Among them are the;

Housing Policy Management
Development and Management of Affordable Housing

Management of Building and Construction Standards and Codes

Shelter and Slum Upgrading

Management of Civil Servants Housing Scheme

Development and Management of Government Housing

Oversee the establishment of an effective, efficient and sustainable Urban Public Transport
system within the Nairobi Metropolitan Area,

= Urban Planning and Development

. s oa oy
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Our Core Values

In its endeavour to execute its Mandate, the state department is puided by the following Core Values/
Principles; -

v Team spirit

. Prompt customer responsiveness

. Integrity — honesty, accountability and transparency

A Patriotism

. Consultative

. Professionalism

. Gender equity and equality

Our Strategic Objectives

The strategic objectives are:

To build adequate capacity to deliver effective and efficient services; ,
2. To formulate and coordinate implementation of policies and legal framework for sustainable,
housing and urban development.

To facilitate access to adequate housing.
To improve livelihoods of people living and working in slums and informal settlements.

To develop and coordinate implementation of integrated strategic urban development and
capital investment plans.

W oR

(b) Key Manzgement

The state department day-to-day management is under the following L:J:}r Organs:
Directorate of Urban and Metropolitan Development
Directorate of Housing Development and Human Settlement
* Directorate of General Administration, Planning and Support Services

{c) Departments

The State Department comprises the following;
* General Administration and Planning
Housing
Slum Upgrading
Estates
Civil Servants Housing Scheme (CSHS)
* Urban Development and Metropolitan Development

il
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- (d) Institutions

= National Housing Corporation

@ The Nairobi Metropolitan Area Transport Authority (NaMATA)
@ Integrated Project Delivery Unit (TPDL)

@ Kenya Building Research Centre)

() Fiduciary Manapement
The key management personnel who held office during the financial vear ended 30% June

2021 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. MName Designation
1. | James W. Macharia, EGH Cabinet Secretary

2. | Charles M. Hinga, CBS Principal Secretary - -
Accounting Officer

3. | Ibrahim M. Hussein, OGW Secretary

ation

iv
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Neo. Mame Designation
4. | Q8. Patrick M. Bucha, MBS | Secretary, Housing

3. | Eng. Benjamin Njenga Secretary, Urban and
Metropolitan
Development

(f) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
Composition of the Committee Members

The various committee members within the State Department are drawn from various sectors of the
economy and have a wide range of skills and experience and each contributes independently judgement

and knowledge of the committee discussions.

On appointment ¢ach commitiee member is provided with a comprehensive and tailored induction
processes covering the State Department's business and operations and provided with information

relating to their legal and regulatory obligations.

All committee members and required to re-submit themselves for re-appointment after expiry of their
term.

The committes was responsible and instrumental in:

. Improving the quality of financial reporting by ensuring the aceounts are prepared in a timely
and accurate manner to facilitate prompt submission of annual financial statements to the
Auditor General with a copy to the National Treasury and the Controller of Budget not later
than 30th September of each subsequent year as well as submission of quarterly financial
slatements accounts to the Cabinet Secretary with a copy to the National Treasury and  the
Controller of Budget not later than fifteen (15) after the end of each quarter.

o Reviewing and making recommendations on management programs established to monitor

compliance with sound public financial management, internal controls, policies, laws,

regulations, procedures and the code of ethics.

Strengthening the effectiveness of the internal audit function including regular review of its

capacity, review and approval of the internal audit charter and internal audit annual work plan,

W
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The following are the different committees and their activities in the Departments:

i.  Corruption Prevention Committee

L.
ii.
fii.
iv.

V.
Vi

Setting priorities in the prevention of corruption within the State Department
Planning and coordinating corruption prevention strategies

Integrating all corruption prevention initiatives in the State Department

Receiving and reviewing reports on corruption reports made by staff and other
stakeholder. Evidence of concrete measures taken must be made available and
referrals to other agencies well documented.

Spearheading corruption prevention campaigns within the State Departments
Monitoring and evaluating the impact of corruption prevention campaigns within the

State Department

ii.  Audit Committee Activities

ii.

Iv.

vi.

Evaluating adequacy of management procedures with regard to risk management,
control and  governance

Reviewing and approving the andit charter and the internal audit manual work plans
Reviewing the internal and external andit findings/recommendation and proposing
necessary action

Reviewing the systems established to ensure sound public financial management and
internal controls, compliance with policies, laws, regulations, procedures, plans and
ethics.
Initiating special audit/investigation on any allegations, concerns and complaints
regarding, lack of accountability and transparency in consultation with the

Accounting Officer.
Any other task which are within the mandate of the committee

iii. Budget Implementation Committee Activities

i
ii.
L.
iv.,
v.
Vi,

vii.
Viii.

To review and consider the cash flow plans
To review the utilization of cash limits and considet any changes as may be required

To review the utilization of donor funds voted for the MDA

To advise the Accounting Officer on any changes related to the budget implementation
To review and recommend reallocation of expenditures

To review and approve the submission of the expenditure returns, IPPD, Pending Bills,
A.LA returns for the MDAs and recommend the actions to be taken

To participate in Sector Working Groups; and

To prepare budgets in consultation with Heads of Departments

iv.  Parliamentary Committee Activities

L.
i.
iil.
Iv,
V.
vi.

Gather information on issues raised

Receive and compile the gathered information

Facilitate the Cabinet Secretary’s appéarance at the parliament and Senate as requested
Make follow up on issues raised form both National Assembly and the Senate

Submit responses as required and agreed by the Cabinet Secretary

Make annual reports on all matters attended to in response to parliament concemns

vi
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v. Development Partner Oversight Activities :
This committee is composed of the following members drawn from various sectors of the

economy with broad business knowledge.

i. Carrying out periodic financial review on project activities

ii. Issuing no objection clearance on planned spending on project activities

iii. Carrying out regular supervision mission _

iv. Offering advice on the best practices worldwide as far project implementation is  concerned
v. Offering technical support where local talent is insufficient

vi, Carrying out training activities where necessary

vii Human Resources Management Advisory Committee Activities
This is the committee charged with the responsibilities of taking care of human resources needs.
i. Review of promotions of officers in Job Group A-P
ii.  Review of confirmations in appointment
iii. Review of disciplinary matters
iv. Review of re-designation of officers from one cadre to another and
v. Confirmation of surcharge of officers found to have misused government resources.

vii. Training Committee activities
This is the committee charged with the responsibilities of human resource development needs.

Their duties include:
i.  Overall coordination of the training functions in the State Department.

ii,  Review and implementation of the State Department training plan; o
iii. Review of induction of newly appointed officers and activities around long term training.

{z) Entity Headquarters

State Department of Housing and Urban Development
P.O Box 30119-00100 Nairobi, Kenya

Tel. Mo: +254-020-2713833

Fax: +254-020-27343886

Website: www.housingandurban.go.ke

Ardhi House Building

1* Ngong Avenue

NAIROBI, KENYA

(h) Entity Contacts
State Department for Housing and Urban Development
P.O Box 30119-00100 Nairobi, Kenya
Tel. No: +254-020-2713833
Fax: +254-020-2734886
E-mail: pshud(@ardhi.go.ke, info{@housingandurban. go ke
Website: www _housingandurban.go ke
Ardhi House Building
1# Ngong Avenue
NAIROBI, KENYA

vii
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(i) Entity Bankers

Central Bank of Kenya

Haile Selassie Avenue

P.O. Box 60000 {City Square 00200)
Telephone: (254) 202860000
E-mail: cmmna@oemralbank gn.ke

Website: v oz ank.E K

---- e -—-—--—F .

NMRDBI KENYA

{i) Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of The Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.0O. Box 30084

GEO 00100

MATRORBE, KEMY A

(k) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KENY A

viil
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2. FORWARD BY THE CABINET SECRETARY

The State Department for Housing and Urban Development is mandated to provide policy direction on
matters related to Housing, Urban and Metropolitan Development. During the period under review, the
State Department implemented its budget in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act,

2012.

As a result of prudent expenditure, key flagship projects and programmes were implemented and
completed. These projects among them include: 1,370 housing units under Affordable Housing
Programme one of the pillars of the Big Four Agenda; 300 housing units for Police service, which goes
a long way to boast housing needs for the disciplined forces; Uhuru Business Park in Kisumu County
will enhance incomes for traders in Kisumu City; to regularise land tenure in informal settlements, 5,274
title deeds were issued in Naluru, Kilifi and Mombasa. Further, 10 railway stations within Nairobi
Metropolitan Region were upgraded to decongest Nairobi City through commuter Rail Services,

As a sirategy to establish and strengthen urban institutions and deliver improved infrastructure and
Services to citizens, the Government through Kenya Urban Support Program (KUSP) disbursed Kshs
28.149 billion as grant to 45 Counties (except Nairobi and Mombasa Counties because of their special

infrastructural needs),

During the 2020/21 FY, approved budget was Ksh. 28,236,506, 640 and the actual expenditure stood
at Ksh. 35,553,22{},01]!] which constitute 94% absorption level. The expenditure level for the P'Elfiﬂd
under review remained generally good due to improved project management. The overall analysis of

approved budget versus actual expenditures is shown in the table 1 below.

Table 1: Analysis by category of expenditure: Economic Classification (Kshs. Million)
Economic Classification Approved Budget Actual Expenditure
2020121 [ 2020121
 Programme 1 - Housing Development and Human Settlement
Current Expenditure 528.51 s 525.44
Cumpmmatinn o Ernplﬂ}rees 380.61 380.61
Use of goods and services 147.90 144.83
Current Grants and Transfers
Other Recurrent
Capital Expenditure 3,400.26 2,646.20
Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets 3.400.26 2,646.20
Capital Grants and Transfers
Other Development
Total Expenditure, P.0102 3,928.77 3,171.64
Programme 2- Urban and Metropolitan Development
Current Expenditure 163.18 | 162.51
Compensation to Employees " T2 1272
| Use of goods and services 50.46 49.79
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Economic Classification Approved Budget Actual Expenditure
2020721 202021

Current Grants and Transfers 40.00 40.00

Other Recurrent

Capital Expenditure 23,844.30 22,936.96

Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets 23,844.30 22.936.96

Capital Grants and Transfers 0 0

Other Development

Total Expenditure, P.0105 2400748 23,099.47

Programme 3- General Administration, Planning and Support Services

Current Expenditure 300.26 297.11

Compensation to Employess 212.76 212.76

Use of goods and services §7.50 §4.33

Current Grants and Transfers

Other Recurrent

Capital Expenditure - -

Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets

Capital Grants and Transfers

Other Development

Total Expenditure, P.0106 300.26 297.11

Total Expenditure, Vote 1094 - SHUD 28,236.51 26,568.22

Fowrce: State Departiment for Housing and Urban Development

Analysis of Approved Budget by Programmes
During the 2020/21 F/Y, Housing Development and Human Settlement was allocated 3,928.77 million

which constitutes 14% of the approved budget, Urban and Metropolitan Development was allocated
24,007.48 million which constitutes 5% of the approved budget and General Administration, Planning
and Support services was allocated 300.26 million constituting 1% of the approved budget respectively

as shown below.
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APPROVED BUDGET BY
O PROGRAMMES i
Flaoning ml::in' Development and
Support Serviges Human
%% Seltlemnent
14%

Foweree: Stgre Department for Howsin g ared Urdoen Developmen:

Analysis of Actuaf expenditures by Programmes

During the 202072 F/Y, Housing Development and Human Settlement programme expenditure
amounted to 3,171.64 million constituting 12% of the actual expenditures, Urban and Metropolitan
Development Programme actual expenditure was 23,099.47 million which constitutes 87% and actual
cxpenditure for General Administration, Planning and Support services programme amounted to
297.11 million reflecting 1% of the actual expenditure as shown below,

ACTUAL EXPENDITURE BY
O PROGRAMMIES

Administration i
" . Housing
Flanning and Bpmen
Suppom Services D“EIl-Iu:rmnt "
1%% L ; Sertlement
3%

Sowrce: Sinte Departren; Jor Housing and Urban Development

Analysis of Expenditure for Housing Development and Human Settlements programme by
Economic Classificatiog
Xl
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During the 2020/21 F/Y, actual expenditure for Housing Development and Human Settlement
programme by economic classification were as follows; Compensation to employees amounted to Kshs
380.61 million, use of goods and services amounted to Kshs 144.83 million and acquisition of Non —
Financial Assets amounted to Kshs 2,646.20 million. Analysis of actual expenditures for Housing
Development and Human Settlements programme by Economic Classification is shown in the bar

graph below.
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Analysis of Expenditure for Urban and Metropolitan Development Programme by Economic
Classification

During the 2020/21 F/Y, actual expenditure by economic ¢lassification for Urban and Metropolitan
Development Programme were as follows; Compensation to employees amounted to Kshs 72.72
million, use of goods and services amounted to Kshs 49.79 million, Current Grants and Transfers
amounted to Kshs 40 million and Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets amounted to Kshs 22,963.96
million. Analysis of actual expenditures for Urban and Metropolitan Development Programme by

Economic Classification iz shown in the bar graph below
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Analysis of Expenditure for General Administration, Planning and Support services

programme by Econemic Classification _
In the 2020/21 F/Y, the actual expenditure for General Adminisiration, Planning and Support Services

Programme by economic classification were as follows; Compensation to employees amounted to Kshs
212,76 million while use of goods and services amounted to Kshs 84.35 million. Analysis of actual

expenditures for General Administration, Planning and Support services by Economic Classification is
shown in the bar graph below.
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Summary of Major Achievements
a) Housing Development and Human Settlement

Completed construction of 1370 affordable housing units in Park Road, Mairobi; established and
operationalized the National Housing Development Fund (NHDF) to facilitate construction of
affordable housing: completed construction of 300 housing units for National Police and Kenya
Prison Services while others are under construction; completed 220 housing units for Civil Servants
in Machakos and Embu; facilitated 644 Civil Servants with mortgage facility to own, established 8§
Constituency Appropriate Bulding and Construction Technology (ABMT) centres and trained
2,550 new trainees on the use of ABMTs; and refurbished 526 Government pool housing units.

280,000 youth and women were engaged under Kazi Mtaani Programme as a covid-19 mitigation
measure in labour-for-wage cleaning and sanitation activities in informal settlements across all
Counties; completed 462 housing units under Sustainable Neighborhood in Mavoko; constructed
Uhuru Business Park in Kisumu; upgraded 13.2km of roads to Bitumen standards in West Polcot,
Kitui, Meru and Nairobi Counties; constructed 2 footbridges in Nairobi; 9 classrooms & supporting
facilities under construction in informal settlements in Tharaka Nithi and Isiolo Counties at 85%
completion level. 5,274 title deeds were issued to some informal settlements of Nakuru and Kilifi

to regularize land tenure.

wiv
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b) Urban and Metropolitan Development
Upgraded 10No. railway stations within MMR; constructed Karandini, Mwariroe, Ngong, Kikuyu,
Ruiru, Juja, Kihara, Kamlcunji, Ngong road and Dagoreti markets. Githurai market on-going at 90%.
Construction of Mitubiri landfill is ongoing at 95%. Completed 16,5Km of storm water drainage in

Narok and Kerugoya; constructed 2 primary and secondary schoals under Poor Urban programme;
completed 6 flagship markets; completed 9 ESP markets; Establishment of GIS Based Mass

Valuation System for Nairobi City County angoing at 80% while implementation of Kisumu Urban
Project (KUP) is ongoing at 98%.

As 2 strategy to establish and strengthen urban institutions and deliver improved infrastructure and
Services to citizens, the Government through Kenya Urban Support Program (KUSP) disbursed Kshs
28.149 billion as grant to 45 Counties (except Nairobi and Mombasa Counties because of their

special infrastructural needs).

) General Administration, Planning and Support Services
This programme offers administrative and support services 1o the Sub-sector and the following are
the key outputs achieved: 67 officers trained on various programmes; conducted customer
satistaction and work environment baseline surveys; and sensitized officers on Staff Performance

Appraisal System and HIV/AIDS awareness.

Pictorials for Key Achievements
1) 1,370 Affordable Housing units, Nairobi ﬁ‘
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2) 462 Housing units, Sustainable Neighborhood Housing Project (SNF) in Mavoko — Project is 100
% Complete '

|

CLE

3 195 N
b

Mavoko SNP project

L W -

3) Uhuru Business Park Kisumu Town, Kisumu County = Project is 100 % Complete “

.'. ) T E ; : g,
- ‘ '-i-_ w1 g '-#_,

Uhury Bussiness Park, Kisumu County
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4) Majengo Social Hall, Meru

xvil
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6) Civil Servants Housing Units, Embu

7) Kenya Prisons Service Housing Units, Kakamegs

xviil
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8) Kenya Informal Settlements Improvement Project (KISIP) - Completed Infrastructure investments that
include access roads, High mast security lighting and foot paths. Land tenure regularization was undertalen
in 13 Counties. This comprises of planning, survey, issuance of allotment letters and titles. 5,103 title deeds

prepared, 750 of which have been issued.
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Roads, footpaths and high mast lighting installed in Informal settlements

Title deeds issues in Mombasa
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-9} Schools in Poor Urban Areas Programme, Khadija Secondary and Primary- Mombasa

i'}md::fn Secondary and Primary- Mombasa

Emerging issues
The Cowvid-19 Pandemic stood out as the strongest emerging issue. As a result, the State Department

spearheaded the National Hygiene Programme duped Kazi Mtaani targeting 280,000 youth and women
in informal urban areas to cushion them during the pandemic. The Pandemic affected project funding
and implementation, there were budgetary cuts in allocated budget as most funding was directed to
programmes that were peared in containing the pandemic. Project completion dates were also affected
during this period since contractors reduced its work force thus slowing most of the works.
Key risk management strategies
The following were key risk management strategies that the State Department employed in
implementing its budget and projects:

1) Proper costing of projects

2) Project supervision

3)  Regular engagement with stakeholders such as the National Treasury, Parliament and

Project beneficiaries,
4} Strict adherence to Public Finance and Procurement laws
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Implementation Challenges

1.
. Lack of attractive incentives to spur private sector participation in low cost housing provision

2
3
4
5.
]
7

Legal challenges on implementation of Housing Fund.

. Lengthy process of acquiring Land ownership documents.
- Inadequate funding coupled with delayed release of exchequer leading to pending bills.

Conflicting Designs where a project is implemented by many agencies in the same site
Untimely release of exchequer causing delays.

Political interference

Solutions for overcome above Challenges

1.

Alignment of budget under National Government by both “Big Four” Drivers and Enablers
ensures that there is common approach to implementation of key projects.

Approval of proposed sector incentives
Stakeholders involvement (at both National and County level) at all phases of project ensure

efiective achievement of intended objectives.

Explore use of PPPs in project implementation
Harmonization of designs across different implementing agencies where different projects are

implemented on the same or adjacent site.
Engage National Treasury on enhanced budgetary allocation and timely release of funds.

Engage political leadership as early as possible during and throughout the planning process,
including local County Assembly representatives and the respective planning committees in

the counties

Sign.

James Wainaina Machariz, EGH
CABINET SECRETARY
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3. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

Introduection

Section 81 (2) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each financial
year, the accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each National Government entity in
accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

includes a statement of the national government entity’s performance against predetermined objectives.

The key strategic objectives as per the strategic plan for 2018 - 2022 plans are to:
2) Key Result Area 1: Policy, Legal, Regulatory and Institutional Frameworlk
Strategic Objective: To Formulate and/or Review and Co-ordinate Implementation of Requisite
Policies, Legal, Regulatory and Institutional Frameworl
b) Key Result Area 2: Quality of Service, Safety and Security
Strategic Objective: To Improve Quality of Service, Safety and Security
¢) Key Result Area 3: Research and Innovation

Strategic Objective: To Enhance Research and Development
d) Result Area 4: Development of Physical Infrastructure and Facilities

Strategic Objective: To Expand, Modernize and Maintain Integrated, Efficient and Sustainable

Transport Systems

Progress on attainment of Strategic Objectives
For purposes of implementing and cascading the above development objectives to specific sectors, all

the development objectives were made specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time-bound
(SMART) and converted into development outcomes. Attendant indicators were identified for reasons
of tracking progress and performance measurement: Below we provide the progress on attaining the

stated objectives:
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;

Housing To Expand, | Access to No. of housing 2,352 units
| ; .
E;Eﬂ::sm Modernize and | affordable and units constructed | completed
Settlement Maintain decent housing
Inteprated, as well as
Efficient and | enhanced estates
Sustainable management
Transport Systems | services
To Formulate Access to Housing Act Review of draft
and/or Review and | affordable and | enacted Bill ongoing
Co-ordinate decent housing | National Slum Policy in place
Implementation of | as well as Upgrading and and draft Bill
Requisite Policies, | enhanced estates | Prevention Bill | submitted io
Legal, Regulatory | management (INSSUP) Parliament
and Institutional SETVICES enacted
Frameworl
To Enhance Access 1o No. of ABMT 8 centres
Bdsisich and affordable and centres completed in
decent housing established Pokot South,
Dievelopment as well as Konoin, Kajiado
enhanced estates South, Ugenya,
managerent Bahati, Mandera
SErvices West, Kieni and
Kesses
constituencies
No. of new Trained 2,550
trainees new trainees
Urban and To Improve Sustainable No. of National | 2Mo. fire-
Metrapalitn uality of Servi ban planni ban disaster fighting statio
Development Quality of Service, | urban planning, | ur 1ghting stations
Safety and Security | development and | centres Rehabilitated
management constructed (Kangundo road
and Waithaka
fire stations)
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hubs constructed

The completed

markets are
Kikuyu; Kihara;
Mwariro; Ruinu;
Juja; Karandini;
Dagoretti;  and
Ngong markets
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1] MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ACHIEVEMENTS OF PROJECTS
AND PROGRAMMES FOR 2020/2021 FY

PROJECT/PROGRAM TARGETS DETAILED
COMPONENTS IMPLEMENTATION
IPH | TARGETS | MPLEMENTATON

" Affordable housing 400,000 | Completion of 1370 | 1370 units completed and

programeme housing units | housing units in allocated to beneficiaries
Parkroad
Construction to 5% | o  Negotiations with the
completion level of developer ongoing for the
7,870 housing units development of Shauri and

in Starehe -3,370 and Starehe
Shauri Moyo -4,500)

Social Housing 100,000 Achieve 20% of s Kibera Soweto East Zone
Development housing units | construction works of | * B fenced, developer
7,395 housing units identified. Awaiting AG
in Kibera Soweto advice on contract signing.
East Zone B e Mariguini South B -
(4,435No.) and Project designs done but
Mariguini South B el
(2,690No.) informal progress hampersyl ¥
settlements court case which has since
been uplifted.
Civil Servants Housing | 10,400 & Completion of # 200 housing units in
programme housing units 613 housing units Machakos, completed 193
o Design and award units in Kiambu at 94%
tender for and 220 units in Embu at
construction of D6%.
1350 units = Bids evaluation ongoing

for construction of 1,350
units in Nyeri, Nakuru,
Eldoret, Kisii and Meru.

Mational Police & 7,394 housing | Completion of 1,364 | « 300 housing units
Prisons Services Housing | units units completed and handed
Programme over in Narok police

station (60), Kakamega
prisons (60), Kapenguria
Prison (60) , Eldama
Ravine APS (60) and Kitw
{AP Border Patrol School)
(60).

+ 1064 units under
construction at an average
of 65% completion level
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various slums and
informal settlements

PROJECT/PROGRAM TARGETS DETAILED
COMPONENTS MTP 0L TARGETS IMPLEMENTATION
TARGETS 2020/2021 STATUS/ACHIEVEMENTS
Mavoko Sustainable 462 housing | 100% completion 100% complete
Neighborhood Housing | units
Project (SNF) :
Construction of 1.2km 100% 100% completion of | 90% complete
Lukenya sewer line completion of | works
works
Implementation of NA Engagement of 269,399 workers were
National Hygiene 283,000 youth and engaged countrywide to
Programme (Kazi women to undertake | undertake environmental clean
Mtaani) — presidential hygiene activities in | ups, beautification, greening
directive urban informal and drainage improvement.
| settlements
Construction of Uhuru Completion 100% completed 100% complete
Business Park Kisumu
Town, Kisumu County -
Presidential Directive
Construction of Nakuru | Completion | 50% completed 45 % complete
Multipurpose Market in
Makuru County -
Presidential Directive
Installation of social and | 100% 100% completed » Buchifi market, Kakamega
-physical Infrastructure in | completed -100%

e Sopcial Hall in Majengo
Slums, Meru Town —
100%

* 5 No. Classrooms,
Administration & Ablution
Blocks in Kiwanjani
Primary School, Isidlo
Town- 100%

# Upgrading to bitumen
standards of 3.7 km KCB-
Slaughter House Road in
Mwingi Town — 85%
complete

¢ Construction of Ngar
Market in Kirinyaga
County — 90%

* Construction of Boarding
facilities at Chiakariga
girls secondary school in
Tharaka Nithi County —
65% complete
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PROJECT/PROGRAM | TARGETS DETAILED
COMPONENTS IMPLEMENTATION
G | vEAENTs
= Construction of boarding
facilities at Milimam
primary school Nakuru
town, Nakuru County -
| 30% complete

Establishment of Establish 25 | Establish 8§ ABMT » § center completed in

Appropriate Building ABMT centres established Pokot South, Konoin,

Technolgy (ABMT) centres Kajiado South, Ugenya,

Centres Bahati, Mandera West,

Kieni and Kesses
constituencies

Operationalization of a | Operational Operational fund Fund established and managed

National Housing fund by NHC

Development Fund Ksh306 M spend on Parkroad

housing

Kenya Informal Implement 100% completion of | KISIP [ was completed in

Settlement Improvement | 50% of targeted activities 2019/2020 .

Project (KISIP ) identified MoUs with participating
aclivities Counties signed, Financing
under KISIP agreements signed with
I Donors and procurement on

going for implementation of
KISIP IT

Completion of Mitubiri 100% 100% complete 95% complete

sanitary landfill complete

Improvement of Upgrade 10 Improve 2 stations Improvement of Pipeline and

Commuter Rail Stations | railway Donhelm Stathions undertaleen
stations

Kenya Urban support Disburse 100% 80% of disbursements of

Programme (KUSP) Urban ! UDG to the benefitting
Development Counties
Grants (UDG)
to qualifying
Counties

Completion of flagship | Complete 7 100% completion Kikuyu; Kihara, Mwariro;

Marlets within Nairobi | markets Ruiru; Juja; Karandini; and

Metropolitan Region Mgong marlets completed

Redevelopment of 100% O0%% 50% complete

Githural market hub completion

Redevelopment of 100% 100% 100%

Kamlounji market completion

Redevelopment of 100% 100% 100%

| Dagoretti marlet completion
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PROJECT/PROGRAM TARGETS DETAILED

COMPONENTS MTP L1 TARGETS IMPLEMENTATION
TARGETS 2020/2021 STATUS/ACHIEVEMENTS

Construction of Gikomba | 100% 100% 100%

Market hub completion

Construction of Chaka 100% 100%% 100%

market hub (Phase II) completion

Construction of 50% 100% 20%

Myansiongo Market completion

Construction of Muthithi | 100% 100% 100%

Market completion

Rehabilitation of Siakago | 100% 100% 100%

Marlet completion

Rehabilitation of Ishiara | 100% 100% 100%

Market completion

Completion of 79 No. 100% 100% Completed-Sigor Banisa -

ESP markets (Majengo, | completion Bute —, Kirenga -, Miruka-

Sigor, Banisa, Bute and ongoing -Oyugis — 98%

Ovyugis) Majengo -70%,

Primary and secondary 100% 100% 100%

Schools Phase ITI (Kaa | completion

Chonjo and Khadija

Primary Schools) .

Rehabilitation of 4kcm 100% 100% 100%

storm water drainage — | completion

Marol:

Construction of 6km 100% 100% 99%

Kerugoya storm water completion

drainage
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4.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTING

The State Department of Housing & Urban Development exists to transform lives. This is our
purpase; the driving force behind everything we do by putting the customer first, delivering relevant
goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of the

sustainability activities conducted in the vear:

1. Sustainability strategy and profile

The State Department has undertaken programmes with sustainability aspects like the
promotion of the Appropriate Materials and Building Technologies (ABMTs) that utilizes
the local building materials in the hé-using construction. The department has been promoting
the use of green building technologies, in particular the use of solar water heating
technologies, solar heating and lighting and building designs that promote natural lighting
hence reduced heating costs for households. In addition, the Department has been working
with communities and counties in implementation of the housing agenda in such

programmes as Slum Upgrading, which ensures that the locals can be in charge of future
operations and maintenance of such facilities.

. Environmental performance

The programmes under the State Department are clearly guided by the Environment
Management and Coordination Act of 1999 and as amended in 2015 in order to sustainably
utilize and conserve the environment. The Act also links the country with several other
international obligations on the environmental protection and conservation. This has had
strong effect on the management of biodiversity, waste management policies and reduction
of negative environmental impact on the depariment projects. Specific projects like Kenya
Informal Settlements Improvement project (KISIP) have had specific regulations to guide
their operation, including adoption of the Operating Manuals (OP) which are developed by
the World Bank. The KISIP project has used also the Environmental and Social
Management Frameworks (ESMF) and the Relocation Action Plans (RAPs) to guide their
operations and hence be in compliance with environmental and social management aspects
of the projects. In addition, the state department engaged youths in a National Hygiene

Programme ‘Kazi mtaani' to foster clean and friendly environment. Construction of
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Lukenya sewerline and Mitubiri sanitary landfill in Muranga to ensure proper disposal of
waste,

3. Employee welfare
Projects implemented adhered to the provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act

of 2007, (OSHA) and have enforced the same in construction and office environments in
collaboration with the relevant agencies. Contractors are instructed to adhere to its
provisions and also show evidence of compliance with the same.
The Public Service Commission (PSC) is in charge of hiring staff on behalf of MDA’s. All
staff are appraised on a yearly basis. Training is given especially for courses required for
promotion or career progression.
The State Department conducted training projections at the beginning of every financial
year to guide the Human resource department in nominating and selecting officers for
training. Additionally, due to the dynamic nature of the economy the department undertook
steps to proactively engage staff in training to ensure their skills conforms to the current
needs. Staff performance appraisal is done annually to ensure that productivity meets the
required standards upon which employee with exemplary performance are given priority
for promotions.
4. Market place practices-
a) Responsible competition practice.
The State department ensured fair competition among the bidders while issuing the
tenders. The bidders are evaluated on set guidelines and given equal opportunity
The State Department for Housing and Urban Development has a Corruption
Prevention Committee in place whose functions amongst others include:
. Setting priorities in the prevention of corruption within the State Department
. Planning and coordinating corruption prevention strategies
. Integrating all corruption prevention initiatives in the State Department
. Receiving and reviewing reports on corruption reports made by staff and other
stakeholder. Evidence of concrete measures taken must be made available and referrals

to other agencies well documented.
Spearheading corruption prevention campaigns within the State Departments

Monitoring and evaluating the impact of corruption prevention campaigns

-

within the State Department
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b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
The State Department proactively engaged stakeholders to ensure vital flow of information

regarding payments, This ensures that accountability and transparency in procurement of
goods and services is maintained between the involved parties. Upon completion of a
project, the department ensures timely issuance of the completion certificate.
¢) Responsible marketing and advertisement
Open advertisement is done in forums easily accessible to the public like newspapers,
websites and povernment notices

d} Preduct stewardship
The State Department ensures the customers have the right to quality and prompt services,

accurate and balanced information, respect and courteous treatment by the staff, timely
payments for goods delivered and services rendered and access to our offices and officers

within the official working hours

5. Community Engagements
The State Department engaged communities in which it implements projects through

committees formed at the community level called Settlement Executive Committee (SEC),
which are representative enough of the land lords, tenants, youth, religious leaders, NGOs,
CBO’s, widows and also the local administration inkling the Member of County
Assemblies, Ward Administrators and also the Chiefs. These community leaders have been
key in selecting a wide range of projects including those that touch on the social investment

platforms.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES
The Principal Secretary in charge of the State Department for Housing & Urben Development is

responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity’s financial statements, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for and as at the end of the financial year ended on June
30, 2021. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements
and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
entity; (ii1) dl::.;igniug. implementing and maintzining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the entity; (v) selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and {1.-'1] making accounting estimates that are reasonable

in the circumstances.

The Principal Secretary in charge of the State Department for housing & Urban Development accepts
responsibility for the entity’s financial statements, which have been prepared on the Cash Basis Method
of Financial Reporting, using appropriate accounting policies in accordance with Intemational Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The Accounting Officer is of the opinion that the State
Departmenis financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of entity”s transactions during the
financial year ended June 30, 2021, and of the entity’s financial position as at that date. The Principal
Secretary in charge of the State Department for housing & Urban Development further confirms the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Stare Depariment, which have been relied
upon in the preparation of the entity’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of

intemal financial control.

The Principal Secretary in charge of the State Department for housing & Urban Development confirms
that the entity has complied fully with applicable Government Regulations and the terms of external
financing covenants (where applicable), and that the entity’s funds received during the year under audit
were used for the eligible purposes for which they were intended and were propetly accounted for.
Further the Accounting Officer confirms that the entity’s financial statements have been prepared in a
form that complies with relevant accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting

Standards Board of Kenya.
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Approval of the financial statements

The Stare Department ‘s financial statements were approved and signed by the Principal Secretary on

Vel 121202,

l . S
FRIMNCIPAL SECRETARY HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT
Mame: Charles M. Hinga, CBS Mame: CPA Joyee G. Mutugi (Mrs)
ICPAK Member Number:4265
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.O. Box 30084-00100

Enhancing Accauntabiling e

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial
statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework, accounting standards and the relevant laws and requlations
that have a direct effect on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure
government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended
puUrpose,

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide intermnal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implementad
by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of
the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal control, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the
financial year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution
and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together
constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

Report of the Auditor-General on State Depariment for Housing and Urban Development for the year ended
J0 Sune, 2021



REFPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of State Department for
Housing and Urban Development set out on pages 1 to 28, which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of receipts
and payments, statement of cash flows and summary statement of appropriation-
recurrent and development combined for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public
Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the State Department for Housing and Urban Development as at
30 June, 2021 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash
Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the State Department for Housing and
Urban Development Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. |
have fulfiled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources, | confirm that, nothing else has come
to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Report of the Anditor-General on State Department for Honsing and Urban Development for the year ended
Jit Sune, 2027
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Interest on Delayed Settlement of Award

During the year under review, the State Department made payments totalling to
Kshs. 136,953,343 to the Office of the Attorney General for on-ward transfer to a
claimant in respect of an award for principal and accrued interest computed on an
amount of Kshs. 100,000,000 arising from case No, HC ELC NQ.476 of 2012. The
payment was effected in two tranches of Kshs.103,907 285 and Kshs 33,046,058 on
10 July, 2019 and 21 April, 2020 respectively. The payment was final and catered for
the principal and the interest accrued from 13 March, 2015 to 31 December, 2019,

However, review of documents indicated that the claimant issued an additional
demand note of Kshs 24,212 628 to the State Depariment as additional interest
accrued for six (6) months due to failure by the Attorney General to transmit the
awarded amount in time.

Consequently, the State Depariment is likely to incur additional expenditure of
Kshs.24,212,628 that could have been avoided and hence lack of value for money on
the additional expenditure.

2. Contingent Liabilities

Note 16.2 to the financial statements reflects a contingent liability of Kshs.402,494,393
relating to a contractor. The liability arose from an arbitral award to the contractor on
the matter of arbitration between the contractor and the then Ministry of Local
Government. The arbitral award was for two (2) contracts under the Nakuru Town
Roads Project contract no. PKAMBA of Kshs. 100,726,453 and PKG/MEA of
Kshs.301,767 941 outstanding since 31 October, 2017 and 3 June, 2018 respectively.
Although the State Department had paid Kshs, 305,999,999 as at 30 June, 2021, the
two (2) arbitral awards had accumulated additional compound interest of
Kshs.283,504, 982 and additional cost of Kshs.5,380,215 both totalling to
Kshs.288,895,197.

The additional amount of Kshs. 288,895,197 represents an avoidable expenditure for
which no value for money was obtained.

3. Uncollected Revenue from Government Houses

As previously reported, the total number of Government houses across the forty-seven
(47) Counties stood at fifty-six thousand eight hundred and ninety-two (56,892) with
an expected monthly rental income of Kshs, 127,048,750 resulting into an annual rent
potential of Kshs.1,524 585000 assuming full occupancy. Rent collections on
Government houses for the financial year amounted to Kshs. 873,395,571 leading to
an under performance of Kshs.651,198,429 of the full potential. Further, for the
Government houses occupied by the County Governments' staff, deductions made
through the respective payrolls were not remitted in full to the State Department.

Feport of the Auditor-Generel on State D_e'pﬂrm:la!rrj'_.l"ur Housing aid Urban Development for the year ended
30 June, 2021
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Consequently, rent income due to the State Department was not collected in
accordance with Regulation 43(c) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015 which requires an Accounting Officer to ensure that
all Appropriations-in-Aid due to a national government entity are collected and
properly accounted for in accordance with the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

4. Boarded Houses

Examination of records on boarded houses countrywide revealed that several houses
were sither encroached, condemned or demolished, transferred to other entities, or
converted to office for commercial use. The State Department does not have an
updated inventory of all houses countrywide which could be used to approximate the
rent receivable from Government houses. In the absence of updated records, the
extent of unrealized revenue from such boarded houses could not be confirmed.

5. Abandoned Projects

As previously reported, the construction of one hundred (100) housing units at Emali
Administration Police Training Camp at a cost of Kshs. 136,705,536 had been
abandoned at 85% completion stage. Management has not provided any evidence of
efforts towards resumption of the works.

In the circumstances, it has not been possible to confirm whether value for money will
be realized from the public funds committed to the project

6. Gaps in Government Residential Houses Register

As previously reported, according to the inventory of Government houses provided for
audit review, the Government had a total of 56,892 houses categorized into
institutional, police and pool houses. The houses were further categorized into low,
medium and high grades. However, the register maintained by the State Department
did not contain key information such as the dates of occupancy and vacancy,
occupants' details and reason for non-cccupancy.

Failure to maintain a comprehensive register makes it difficult to keep track of
Government houses and tenants in relation to occupancy, vacancy of the houses,
houses with rent arrears and their respective maintenance costs. This is contrary to
Regulation 139(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management (National Government)
Regulations, 2015 which states that the Accounting Officer of a national government
entity should take full responsibility and ensure that proper control systems exist for
assets and that preventative mechanisms are in place to eliminate theft, security
threats, losses, wastage and misuse.

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1ISSAI 4000, The standard requires that
I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities

Report of the Auditar-General on State Depaviment for Howsing and Urban Development for the pear ended
30t Sune, 2021
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that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REFORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
proceduras performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
Digitization of Estate Management

The management of government houses and collection of rent is largely manual as it
is yet to be digitized. The benefits that accrue with digitization such as ability to
establish expectation on rental income from the individual Ministries, Departments,
Agencies or Counties, invoicing, rent collections, booking of revenue, reconciliations
and maintenance of houses have not been realized. These gaps in the manual system
may lead to undetected loss of revenue.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1SSAl 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall
governance were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Cash Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
State Department's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of
accounting unless the Management is aware of the intention to terminate the State
Department or to cease operations.

Report of the Auditor-General on State Department for Housing and Urban Development for the vear ended
30 Jure, 20271
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Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the autharities which govern them, and that public resources
are applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the State
Department's  financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the
entity monitors compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements,
ensuring that effective processes and systems are in place to address key roles and
responsibilities in relation to governance and risk management, and ensuring the
adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment,

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my apinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act. 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 228(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution,

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal

Report of the Auditor-General on State Depariment for Housing and Urban Development for the year ended
30 Jume, 202
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control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
State Department's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the State Department's ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the State Department to cease to continue to sustain its services.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the State Department to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

» Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

R‘;.‘:"H af the Auditor-General on State Depariment for Housing and Urban Development for the vear ended
30 June, 2021
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| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit,

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

(
CPAN , CBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL
Nairobi
09 February, 2022

Report of the Auditor-General on Stare Department for Hq:uu.e'ng ard Lirbun Development for the pear ended
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7. STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE

2021
2ER-2021 ] 4 e e

RECEIPTS

Transfers from National Treasury I 25,091,504,523 | 21,647,409,206
| Proeeeds from Foreign Borrowings 2 764,999,816 | 3,420,884,702
Other Revenue 3 873,395,571 | 724299195
TOTAL RECEIPTS 26,729,599,910 | 25,792,593,104
PAYMENTS

Compensation of Employecs 1 665,258,296 | 643,466,138
Use of goods and services 5 13,913,491,791 | 1,710,777,650
Transfers to Other Government Entities [ 7,026,968,123 | 9,346,125,494
Acquisition of Assets 7 4,990,547 261 | 14,479,372,741
TOTAL PAYMENTS 26,596,265,471 | 26,179,742,024
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 133,634,440 | (387,148,920)

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of
the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on :?-ER 12 12021 and

signed by:

HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT

MName: CPA Joyce G. Mutugi (Mzs)
ICPAK Member Mumber:4265

PRINCIPAL SECRETARY
Name: Charles M. Hinga, CBS






‘8. STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LI

ABILITIES AS AT 30™ JUNE 2021

b Lt s ol e b 1 - =

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank Balances 8 686,058,136 491,956,528

Total Cash and cash equivalent $66,058,136 49 528

Accounts Receivables 9 - 1,095,636

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 686,058,196 493,052,164

LESS FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Accounts Payables -Deposits 10 448,559,760 383,370,418

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 237,498,436 109,681,746

REPRESENTED BY

Fund balance b/fwd 11 109,681,746 497,923 832

Prior year adjustment 12 (5,817,810} -1,093,216

Surplus/Deficit for the year 133,634,440 (387,148,920)

NET FINANCIAL POSSITICN 237,498,436 109,681,746
The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form integral part of
the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on _L® ﬁ [ I 2021 and

signed by:
¥ 4k
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

Mame: Charles M. Hingar CBS

M! A
HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT

Mame: CPA Joyce G. Mutugi (Mrs)
ICPAK Member Number:4263



STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

TH JUNE 2021

STATEMENT DF CAEH FLDWS FOR 'I'HE YEAR ENDED 30 .
: : 7 | Mlﬁﬂﬂpl 20197224 E

Rﬂ_cém_ls_fﬁ;:pernhng InCome

Transfer from Mational Treasury 1| 25,091,504,523 | 21,647.409,206

Other Revenue 3 473,395,571 724,299,195
25,964,900,095 | 22,371,708,401 |

Payments for operating expenses

Compensation of Employees 4 665,258,296 643,460,138

Use of goods and services 5] 13,913,491,7%1 1,710,601,650

Transfers to Other Government Units 6| 7,026958,123 9,346,125,49%4

Adjusted for:

Changes in receivables 1,095,636 (41,260) |

Chanpes in payables 65,189,342 (90,233,2686)

Adjustments during the year 12 (5,817,810} (1,093,2186)

Met cash. Mow from operating activities 4,419,649,053 | 10,579,147,377

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Assets 7| (4,990,567,262) | (14,479,372,741)

et cash flows from Investing Activities {4,990,567,242) | (14,479,372,741)

CASHFLOW FROM BORROWING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Foreign Borrowings 2 764,999,816 3,420,884,702

Met cash flow from financing activities 764,999,816 |  3,410,554,702

NET INCREASE [N CASH AND CASEH EQUIVALENT 194,101,608 (478,516,662}

Cash and cash equivalent ai BEGINNING of the year 491,956,528 970,473,188

Cash and cash equivalent at ENIP of the year 686,058,136 491,956,527 |

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of the

financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on

by:

PRINCIPAL SECRETARY
Mame: Charles M. Hinga, CBS

LR

2.5 |12 | 2021 and signed

HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT
Name: CPA Joyce G. Mutugi (Mrs)
ICPAK Member Number:4263
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11. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set

out below:
1. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Cash-basis International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (PSASB) and set out in the accounting policy note below. This cash basis of accounting has
been supplemented with accounting for; a) receivables that include imprests and salary advances

and b) payables that include deposits and retentions.

The financial statements comply with and conform to the form of presentation prescribed by the
PSASB. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

2.  Reporting Entity
The financial statements are for the State Department for Housing & Urban Development. The

financial statements encompass the reporting entity as specified under section 81 of the PFM Act
2012 and also comprise of the following development projects implemented by the entity:

3. Reporting Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs), which is the functional and

reporting currency of the Government and all values are rounded to the nearest Kenya Shilling.

4. Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out in this section have been consistently applied by the State

Department for Housing & Urban Development for all the years presented.

a) Recognition of Receipts
The State Department recognises all receipts from the various sources when the event occurs and

the related cash has actually been received by the State Department.

i) Tax Receipts
Tax receipts are recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is considered as

received when notification of tax remittance is received. The State Department did not collect any

such receipts in the period under review.



STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOFPMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

ii) Transfers from the Exchequer
Transfers from the exchequer are recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash

is considered as received when payment instruction is issued to the bank and notified to the receiving
entity.

iii) External Assistance

External assistance is received through grants and loans from multilateral and bilateral development

partners.

Grants and loans shall be recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is

considered as received when a payment advice is received by the recipient entity or by the

beneficiary.

In case of grant/loan in kind, such grants are recorded upon receipt of the grant item and upon
determination of the value. The date of the transaction is the value date indicated on the payment

advice. A similar recognition criteria is applied for loans received in the form of a direet payment.

During the year ended 30™ June 2021, there were no instances of non-compliance with terms and
conditions which have resulted in cancellation of external assistance loans.

iv) Other receipts
These include Appropriation-in-Aid and relates to receipts such as proceeds from disposal

of assets and sale of tender documents. These are recognised in the financial statements the
time associated cash is received.

b} Recognition of payments

The Entity recognises all payments when the event occurs, and the related cash has been paid out

by the Entity.
i) Compensation of Employees
Salaries and wages, allowances, statutory contribution for employees are recognized in the

period when the compensation i3 paid.

ii) Use of Goods and Services
Goods and services are recognized as payments in the period when the goods/services are

paid for. Such expenses, if not paid during the period where goods/services are consumed,
shall be disclosed as pending bills.

10
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fii) Interest on Borrowing
Borrowing costs that include interest are recognized as payment in the period in which they
are paid for.

iv) Repayment of Borrowing (Principal Amount)
The repayment of principal amount of borrowing is recognized as payment in the period in
which the repayment is made.

v) Acquisition of Fixed Assels
The payment on acquisition of property plant and equipment items is not capitalized. The
cost of acquisition and proceeds from disposal of these items are treated as payments and
receipts items respectively. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal consideration and the fair value of the asset can be reliably established, a contra

transaction is recorded as receipt and as a payment.

A fixed asset register is maintained by each public entity and a summary provided for

purposes of consolidation. This summary is disclosed as an annexure to the financial

statemenis.

5. In-kind contributions
In-kind contributions are donations that are made to the Entity in the form of actual goods and/or

services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may include vehicles, equipment or
personnel services. Where the financial value received for in-kind contributions can be reliably
determined, the State Department includes such value in the statement of receipts and payments

both as receipts and as payments in equal and opposite amounts; otherwise, the contribution is not

recorded.

6. Third Party Payments
Included in the receipts and payments, are payments made on its behalf to third parties in form of

loans and grants. These payments do not constitute cash receipts and payments and are disclosed in
the payment to third parties in the statement of receipts and payments as proceeds from foreign
borrowings.

7.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank

11



STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial
banks at the end of the financial year.

a) Restriction on Cash
Restricted cash represents amounts that are limited/restricted from being used to settle a liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period. This cash is limited for direct use as required by
stipulation.

Amounts maintained in deposit bank accounts are restricted for use in refunding third party deposits.
As at 30th June 2021, this amounted to Ksh 448,559,760 compared to Ksh 383,370,418 in prior
period as indicated on note 10, There were no other restrictions on cash during the year.

8.  Accounts Receivable

For the purposes of these financial statements, imprests and advances to authorised public officers
and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year are
treated as receivables. This is in recognition of the government practice where the imprest payments
are recognized as payments when fully accounted for by the imprest or AIE holders. This is an
enhancement to the cash accounting policy. Other accounts receivables are disclosed in the financial

statements.

8.  Accounts Payable
For the purposes of these financial statements, deposits and retentions held on behalf of third parties

have been recognized on an accrual basis (as accounts payables). This is in recognition of the
government practice of retaining a portion of contracted services and works pending fulfilment of

obligations by the contractor and to hold deposits on behalf of third parties. This is an enhancement
to the cash accounting policy adopted by National Government Ministries and Agencies. Other
liabilities including pending bills are disclosed in the financial statements.

10. Pending Bills
Pending bills consist of unpaid liabilities at the end of the financial year arising from contracted

goods or services during the year or in past years. As pending bills do not involve the payment of
cash in the reporting period, they recorded as ‘memorandum’ or *off-balance’ items to provide a
sense of the overall net cash position of the Entity at the end of the year. When the pending bills are
finally settled, such payments are included in the Statement of Receipts and Payments in the year in

which the payments are made.

12
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11. Budget

The budget is developed on a comparable accounting basis (cash basis except for imprest and
deposits, which are accounted for on an accrual basis), the same accounts classification basis, and
for the same period as the financial statements. The original budget was approved by Parliament on
June 2020 for the period 1% July 2020 to 30" June 2021 as required by Law and there were two

supplementary adjustments to the original budget during the year.

A comparison of the actual performance against the comparable budget for the financial year under
review has been included in the financial statements.

Government Development Projects are budgeted for under the MDAs but receive budgeted funds
as transfers and account for them separately. These transfers are recognised as inter-entity transfers.

12. Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

13. Subsequent Events
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

14. Errors

Material prior period errors shall be corrected retrospectively in the first set of financial statements
authorized for issue after their discovery by: i. restating the comparative amounts for prior period(s)
presented in which the error occurred; or ii. If the error occurred before the earliest prior period
presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets/equity for the earliest
prior period presented. During the year, errors that have been corrected are disclosed under note 12

explaining the nature and amounts.

15. Related Party Transactions
Related party relationships are a normal feature of commerce. Specific information with regards to

related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.
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STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

16. Contingent Liabilities
Section 148 (9) of the PFM Act regulations 2015 requires the Accounting officer of a National

Government entity to report on the payments made, or losses incurred, by the National Ggovernment
entity to meet contingent liabilities as a result of loans during the financial year.
A contingent liability is:
a) A possible abligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity; or

b) A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service

potential will be required to settle the obligation; or
ii) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Some of contingent liabilities may arise from: litigation in progress, guarantees, indemnities. Letters
of comfort! support, insurance, Public Private Partnerships, The State Department does not

recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the financial
statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service

potential is remote.

14



STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

12. MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Exchequer Releases

‘Preseriptipn ~ - S0 T e b R R0 1 e - RIHG 2020
s .".::'fﬁ-:’:FI'.'F:':i;'-'E"-ir.';‘.'T'_;,'" STaT EEvE e ".f."f".:_?m[tII':.‘.:g:j'f:'.‘;.“"i}'?:-:}'ﬁ- vhhl
Total Exchequer Releases 25,001,504,523 21,647,409,206
Total 25,091,504,523 21,647,409,206

The received Exchequer during 202042021 financial amounted to Ksh. 25,091,504,5253 against a
Budgeted exchequer of 16,416,506,640.00 hence exchequer under issues of Ksh.
1,325,002,117.00

The increase in exchequer receipts is mainly attributed to budget increase for strategic
interventions “Kazi Mtaani”.

2. Proceeds from Foreign Borrowings

1 : 2820-2621 20192025 |
e By Abs Kb
Foreign Borrowing - Direct Payments 764,999 816 3,420,884,702

Total 764,999,816 3,420,884,702

The borrowing was from [IDA and was for infrastructure development around Nairobi
Metropolitan Area. The significant decrease is attributed to the winding up of the Project hence a

reduction in budget.

3. Other Receipis

873395571 | 724299195

Total 473,395,571 724,295,195

The increase in other receipts is attributed to improved collection of rent due to the efforts of the

Estate Department.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Compensation of Employees

" 446,025976

Basic salaries of permanent employees 484.8 2,11

Basic wages of temporary employees - 7,973,136
Personal allowances paid as part of salary 180,406,024 189,466,427
Total 665,258,296 643,466,138

The increase to expenditure on employment compensation is attributed to promotions of staff by

the Public Service Commission for succession management in the Civil Service.

5. Use of Goods and Services

Vol |

710,137,879

Utilities, supplies and services 14,072,052

Communication, supplies and services 3,335,837 3,867,944
Domestic travel and subsistence 6,420,900 10,141,958
Foreign travel and subsistence 1,534,452 2,858,392
Printing, advertising and information supplies & services 1,178,347 1,790,260
Rentals of produced assets 100,139,672 112,802,008
Training expenses 2,709,617 3,008,373
Hospitality supplies and services 3,705,243 3,286,279
Insurance costs - -
Specialized materials and services 6,959,642 5,139,645
Office and peneral supplies and services 23,683,066 13,462,206
Fuel Oil and Lubricants ' 4,613,275 9,989,953
Other operating expenses 13,734,767,541 | 1,526,921,458
Rm!tine maintenance — vehicles and other transport 5,784,677 5,505,058
equipment

Routine maintenance — other assets 4,587,469 1,866,237
Exchange Rate Losses -

Total 13,913,491,791 | ' 1,710,777,650

The significant increase in the Use of goods and Services is largely due to an increase of Ksh 13B

as a result of Kazi Mtaani.

Included under other operating expenses is an amount of Ksh 13B towards Kazi Mtaani
Programme implemented by Kenya Informal Settlement Improvement Programme(KISIP).
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STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Annazl Report and Financial Statements
For the vear ended 30, June 2021.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (Continued)
6. Grants and Transfers to other Government Enitities

[Deseription e T~ " Zezaeii] . 20152020 '

i v T Yy Kl

Transfers to Mational Govermment entities

Current grants to government apencies and 42,000,000 21,000,000

other level of government

Capital grants to government agencies and 6,984,5968,123 9,325,125,494

other level of government

TOTAL 7,026,968,123 9,346,125,494

& 2: Transfers to self — reporting entities in the year
The above transfers were made 1o the following self-reporting entities in the year:
‘Bescripton. Becurrent | . Pevelopument e s Tetsl] 500 2026-2021

e

i, <. [ Ksks} Kk | . Rshs

';'['r;nsfers to
SAGAs and 8Cs
MNairobi
Metropolitan Area
Transport 42,000,000.00 0 42,000,000.00
Civil Servants
Housing Fund
Scheme

Kenya slum
Upgrading+ Fund
Transfers to
County
Governmenis
Kenya Urban
Support
Programme (Urban

Development
Grant) #,314,968,123.00 | 6,314,968,123.00 | 6,314,968,123.00
TOTAL 42,000,000,00 | 6,984,968,123.00 |  7,026,968,123 |  7,026,968,123

42 000,000.00

200,000,000.00 200,000,000 | 200,000,000.00

470,000,000.00 | 470,000,000.00 | 470,000,000.00

We have confirmed these amounis with the recipient entifies and aitached these confirmations

us an Appendix to this financial staterent.

17



STATE DEFARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Acquisition of Assets

Purchase of Buildings ' - -
Construction of Buildings 102352978 | 1,072,481,159
Refurbishment of Buildings 782,756,527 | 721,748,464
Construction of Roads 03,763,077 -
Construction and Civil Works 3,286,912,913 | 10,541,626,225
Overhaul and Refurbishment of Construction and 70,000,007 | 1,748,596,705
Civil Works

Purchase of Vehicles and Other Transport Equipment - 10,620,000
Purchase of Office Furniture and General Equipment 521,668 227,900
Purchase of Specialized Plant, Equipment and 444,621,331 286,088,001
Machinery

Rehabilitation of Civil Works - 59,185,659
Research, Studies, Project Preparation, Design & 237,618,761 38,798,626
Supervision

Total 4,990,547,262 | 14,479,372,740

Significant reduction in Construction of Buildings is attributed to budget cuts for construction of
police houses which resulted in pending bills while a significant reduction in Construction and
Civil Works and Overhaul & Refurbishment of Construction and Civil Works was because of the

winding up of the NAMSIP project.

Included under acquisition of assets are Construction of Buildings, Construction of Roads,
Construction & Civil Works and Purchase of Specialized Plant, Equipment and Machinery were
all activities done under NAMSIP and budgeted under Item Code 31 series and not as Item Code

26 series which are transfers,
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STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Annuzl Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. 8A: Bank Accounts

e ks i i o il o
entral Bank of Kenya, 1000395316, KShs Rec : :
Central Bank of Kenya, 1000393583, KShs Development 50,601 3,928,978
Central Bank of Kenya, 1000395672 KShs 445,101,396 338,130,418
Deposit, KShs
Central Bank of Kenya, 1000396338, KShs Rent-A.LA 3,452 140,900
Central Bank of Kenya, 1000396938 KShs NAMSIP 1,787,530 10,624,237
Counterpart
Central Bank of Kenpa, 100036946, KShs Kenya Urban 239,071,646 107,285,373
_Support
Central Bank of Kenya, 100039654 KShs Nairobi 1,885 31,053,425
MetrServNamsip
Tota! 686,058,136 491,956,528

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9, Accounts Receivable

Government Imprests
Total Nil 1,095,636
10. Accounts Payable
tention 445,101,3 383,370,418
Deposits 3,454,912! 45,240,000
[Estates Deposits 3,45;1 -
Total 443,559,75n| 393,370,41
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For the year ended 30, June 2021.

11. Fund Balance Brought Forward

ank accounts 491,956,528 970,473.1
Accounts Receivables 1,095,636 1,054,375
Accounts Payables - (3833 ?D.4lﬂ)i (473,603,683)
Total | 11]9,531,'?46[ 497,923,882

12. Prior Year Adjustments

Bank account Balances 401,956,528 4,722,174 487,234,354

Receivables 1,095,636 1,095,636 :

493,052,164 5,817,810.00 | 487,234,353.65
The adjustments are with respect to brought forward balances duly swept back to exchequer in line
with section 45(2) of the PFM Act and regulation 84.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13. (Increase)/ Decrease in Receivable

TP e _ ._-I .-.-- - ..-_I "' ,,_11_ ik .-.-_l;--. .. : o i f I y _:- .-. 0 -.
Receivables as at 1% July (a) T 1,095,636 1,054,375
Receivables as at 30™ June (b) . 2
Increase)/ Decrease in Receivables (c=(b-a)) 1,095,636 1,054,375

14, Increase/ (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

383,370,418
Payables as at 30" Jupe 448,559,760 383,370,418
Increase/ (Decrease) in payables | o3| (00233269)

15. Related Party Disclosures
Related party disclosure is encouraged under non-mandatory section of the Cash Basis [PSAS.
The following comprise of related parties to the State Department
i) Key management personnel that include the Cabinet Secretaries and Accounting Officers
if}  Other Ministries Departments and Agencies and Development Projects;
iii) County Governments; and
v} State Corporations and Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies.

21



STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &£URBAN DEVELOPMENT
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continwed)

Related party transactions:

Transfers to related parties

Total Transfers from related parties

Transfers to SCs and SAGAs 42,000,000.00 80,449,374

Transfers to Development Project 670,000,000.00 1,166,000,000

Transfers to County Governments 6,314,968,123.00 8,515,676,121

Total Transfers to related parties 7,026,968,123 9,762,125,494

Transfers from related parties

Transfers from the Exchequer 25,091,504,523 | 21,647409.206
25,091,504,523 | 21,647,409,206

16. Other Importznt Disclosures

16.1: Pending Accounts Payable (See Annex 1)

Construction of buildings

237,402,424

Total

237,402,424




STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING &URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30, June 2021.

16.2 Contingent Liabilities

Total

| Bshs | Kshs
Court case (Nyoro Construction Company Ltd) 301,767,040.67 |
Court case (Nyoro Construction Company Ltd) 100,726,453.24 -
402,494,393.91

The Contingent liability has arisen due to failure by the State Department 1o fully pay the arbitral
award and accrued interests in the matter between Nyoro Construction Co. Ltd and the Ministry of
Local Government. Contract No. PKG/16B ~Nakuru Town Roads Project
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17. PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF PRIOR YEARS AUDITOR'S
RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor,

! | These are AIEs

' | i which were issued to
I ¢ the Districts and had
J not been accounted

| | a1 ies j"fn:rr by the time the

: | o financial reports

- i' “1 | were submitted for | The Committee

: ' Financial | audit. The Districts | marked the matter
| Staternents | submitted the ! az resolved. |

[' i | expenditure returns J i
: | later and the | !
' 1 expenditure for | :
1 2017/2018 updated | § |
i: appropriately. |

S . P

——

i |
Fi

-

If' amounts were not ! ]

| included in the
! | financial report. This 5
| Unsupported ' amounts were later  The Committee |

585 ! t ivables -H.I'lﬂl}"ﬂl!!d and ; marked the matter

: [ . 'incorporated inthe  as resolved.

. financial report. The

State Department i
 has since revised the j
 financial report to
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Ultis true that the
breakdown of
transfers reflected - !

| | KSh.1,599,992,362 '

] | as transfers to the . |

i civil servants

| H EI.D'HS]J].E fund while i

! Note 7 reflected a i .

| Variances on ot | The Committee I

586 | Tostaoetis Oice: | mllﬁﬁ,ﬂﬁﬂ,?ﬁz

Entities tdicaring |

KS8h.1,088,689,662 s resolved

!| as transfer to the i

_: |I Civil Servant f :

| | Housing Scheme |

| - Fund resulting in the

.' | variance highlighted

| of KSh.511,302,700,

[ +337

i

i

e e i

i
(The differenceof | e
' KSh. 182,286,500 |
j was contractors’ g
Variances in i ﬂ&iﬁfﬂ;’; The Committee
387 Account Payables- ' deposit bank account - marked the matter
' Deposits but had not been - as resolved i
captured in the |
- system. This
" been corrected, : ,
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I i | records reconciled | ; ,
| | - and the ledger | i

| 5 | updated. Copies of i |
| ,' | this correction was | |
' J  attached for perusal i

_i that the exchequer
! .: releases of

| | 2017/2018 financial | | |
‘ i year amounted to | : |
| | | KSh.10,477,169,945.
| | ' These are the actual ,l ) |
j - receipts which were Dt— |
e | credited in the bank | " e matter

i ' as resolved
. and received through |

| ' the system during i: |
'[ the financial year. | !
[ _! He reported that '
| there was no
variance in both
records. Copies were
attached for perusal
by the Committee.

B
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For the year ended 30, June 2021.

| the statement of . | |
;l receipts and i |
| | payments reflected | | J
' | | rental income of
 KSh.156,530,113 |
 while the trial (

: ' balance reflected nil
:{ Vs ik Reoil ;l ﬁ;hﬁﬁﬁ st | '
™ 1§ A— 530,113 in the f Hicd il mtter
: Ii ' Statement of
| ' Receipts and
| ! Payment have since | ]
; ] been received in the | _
| ' systern and the i |
-' ledger updated. : !
| Copies were "
attached for perusal
| | by the Committee. | |
|

e b e

e e i

. pending bills leaving |
| a balance of | The pending bill | |
KS5h460,889,225 payable to Nyoro ! |
i ‘payable to Nyoro  Construction Lid | i
590 |PendingBills ~ Construction _has been partly | ,
- Company Limited paid leaving a
! waiting end of an ~ balance of /
arbitration process  Ksh.402,494,393.9] !
 which was underway |

e e

e
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Guidance Notes:
(1) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(ii) Obtain the “Issue/Observation” and “management comments”, required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management.
(iti) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons

within yvour entity responsible for implementation of each issue.
Indicate the status of “Resolved” or “Not Resolved™ by the date of submitting this report to

(iv)
National Treasury.
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT
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ANNEX 8- REPORTS GENERATED FROM IFMIS
The following financial Reports Generated from IFMIS should be generated and attached as
appendices to these financial statements.
. GOK IFMIS Comparison Trial Balance
ii.  FO30 (Bank reconciliations) for all bank accounts
iii. GOK IFMIS Receipts and Payments Statement
iv.  GOK IFMIS Statement of Financial Position
v. GOK IFMIS Statement of Cash Flows
vi. GOK IFMIS Notes to the Financial Statements
vii. GOK IFMIS Statement of Budget Execution

vili. GOK IFMIS Statement of Deposits
ix. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Programme and Economic Classification

x. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Heads and Programmes
xi. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Programmes and Sub-programmes
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STATE DEFPARTMENT HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

WHITE SPAN ENTERFRISES

RETENTION MONEY ]
F/Y 2020/2021 |
CONTRACTORS AMOUNT
EPCO BUILDERS 15,226,554.50
STAR GENERAL CONTRACTORS 553,334.90
KENRIC INVESTMENT 3,496,522.00
KOTO HOUSING 10,117,282.45
MBAME CONSTRUCTION 5,526,331.40
MULTIPLEX CONSTRUCTION 3,510,669.03
KYEIGA 298,688.40
NORTHLINK INVESTMENTS LTD 455,634.90
TWIN CONSTRUCTION CO LTD 4,696,575.50
RHINO TECHNICAL WORKS 45,821,521.15
MINECO HOUSE LTD 12,358,478.26
CYKKA WORKS 37,378,076.75
UASO NGIRO CONTRACTORS 5,880,114.65
IMAH CONSTRUCTION CO $395,274.70
ONYX CONSTRUTION 553,299.45
BLACK HEALTH BUILDING 2,737,312.10
START GENERAL CONTRACTORS 1,928,540.50
ASSOCIATED CONSTRUCTION 590,181.20
MAKI & SONS CONSTRUCTION 339,695.00
BUILDMART SOLUTION LTD 34,730,055.75
JIPSY CIVIL &BUILDING CO 5,755,924.10
MULTICON ENTERPRISES 2,086,216.50
HAIDCO LTD 946,277.00
NJUCA CONSOLIDATED LTD 26,635,524.60
SEO & SONS LTD 1,179,759.10
LAFEY CONSTRUCTION 4,879,315.45
MEERA CONSTRUTION 8,133,665.10
MAKMOS INVESTMENTS 1,393,340.00
SPAN WORLD 733,865.00
GALANA BUILDING 482.252.70
TSL HOLDINGS LTD 2,410,926.40
BUILDHIGH ENTERPRISES 5,994,071.25
FIRM BRIDGE LTD 5,805,455.40
SULUER INNOVATION 386,892.35
24,818,039.20




]

EASCO AFRICA LTD 1,971,460.00
' |PINNE AGENCY LTD 31,302,298.05
BOLEYN MAGIC WALL 9,785,094.95
MANYOTA LTD | 1,294 883 .45
BLOOMERG AFRICA LTD 1,576,047.40
GLAN GENERAL SUPPLIES 979,940.20
SCAN CONSTRUCTION LTD 3,233,997.50 |
GREENTECH GENERAL AGENCIES 4,449,868.00
ADEN BROTHERS CO LTD 1,868,934.80
INFINITY DEVELOPMENT §,539,923.00
BENISA LTD 9,173,250.20
ALSOPES BUILDING 3,576,209.50
KAMUTI BUILDING 1,141,424.60
OCEAN BAY INVEST 4,549,593.25
EVER FORTUNES COMPANY 3,002,061.60
GRADWIN ENTERPRISES 2,143,683.70 |
CONTRALINKS SOLUTION 9,304,730.90
EMPORER MERCHANT 1,047,356.40 |
VANQO ROADS AND ENGINEERING 2,582.454.80
MUSTRAD GROUP 1,288,965.75
CLASSIC EAST AFRICA LTD 1,179,960.60
PADAA ENTERPRISES LTD 3,148,152.00
FRONTIER ENGINEERING LTD 1,944,038.50
ABICENT INTERNATIONAL 6,485,940.40
MALILI CONSTRUCTION 12,546,266.00
SURROW TRANSPORT LTD 2,073,174.76
BENRIS INVESTMENT LTD 2,165,806.80
CANTAM INVESTMENT LTD 393,368.80
WIDESCOPE CONSTRUCTION 700,561.00
ALICENT KENYA LTD 994,532.00
DEROW CONSTRUCTION 6,536,231.00
TARSTONE CONTRACTORS LTD 901,417.00
STAQS LTD 4,418,026.00
LED POWER TECHNOLOGIES 4,574,453.55
HYPERTECK ELECTRICALS 2,063,807.40
URBAN BUILDING 4,962,271.00
BLUESWIFT CONTRACTORS 1,407,633.95
HIGHFLIERS LTD 1,652,830.30
VIRSHEMA ENTERPRISES £12,170.20
635,380.10

KONGASIS INVESTMENT LTD




KEVIHA SUPPLIES LTD 621,852.15 |
KANGE CONSTRUCTION 1,797,946.35
KARURA ENGINEERING 361,850.00
BIOMAX AFRICA 1,675,881.00
TOTAL 445,101,395.65
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1 A UED ON W, S

UPDATED PENDING BILL AS AT 315" JANUARY 2021

Foilowing conclusion of arbitration proceedings between the Ministry of Local Government
(The Respondent) and Nyoro Construction Co Ltd (The Claimant), the Arbitrator awarded us
Ksh. 215,504,246.20 payable by 3™ June 2018,

Arising out of your failure to disburse this payment in accordance with the timelines set by the
Arbitrator, the arbitra! award has been accumulating compound interest, which as at 160 May
2019 had raised the pending bill to Ksh, 242,245.179.39.

Subsequently, we received part payment on 3™ December 2020 amounting to Ksh.
44,726,287.00. A pending payment carering for costs of Reference amounting to Ksh.

2,408,000.00 was also settled.

Although receipt of the part-payment reduced the pending bill considerably, the outstanding
amount still coatinues to attract further compound interest as illustrated in the interest
computation sheets attached herewith.

Subsequently, we have tabulated hereunder 4 summary of the total amounts, inclusive of the
accumulated compound interest, outstanding as at 31" January 2021,

Pending Bill s at 16" May 2019 242,245,179.39
Ert}lw Interest Accrued Upto 31 January 2021 - 104,249,048 .27
'Add Custs of Reference | 2,408,000.00 |
Totsl Pending Bill as at 31" Janunry 2021 N 348,902,227.67
Less Payment Received To Date o (47.134,287.00) |
Payment Amount Outstanding | 301,767,940.67 |

-_—-.-...__—__._..,n_________, P e







In view of the foregoing, a total payment of Ksh. 301,767,940.67 s outstanding in respect of
the arbitral award resulting from arbitration proceedings on Contract MNo. PKG/16B.

Please take note that this payment will still continue accruing further interest until figl] payment
is made. It is imperative, therefore, that this payment is settled at the earliest in order 1o avoid
further escalation of the compound interest,

Yours faithfully,







KYORO CONSTRUCTION O, LTD

FERIDDIC MAINTENANCE OF NAKURD TOWN ROADS - CONTILACT MO, PROIERE

ARBITRAL AWARD : KSH. 215,904, 246.20

DATE OF AWARD: 4TH MAY 2018
RATE OF [NTEREST: 13% PER ANMURM = [.5% PER MOHTH

COMPUTATION OF COMPOUND INTEREST FROM 4TH JUNE 2018 TO 31T JANUARY 2021

siin |sepens | voor ETY‘;LNWT;; PRINCIPAL RATE OF INTERESTFOR | PRINCIPAL
DAYS R AMOUNT (IC5H) INTEREST THE MONTH +INTEREST
2018 Jun-18 7 30 215,504,246,20 1.5% 1.014,707.32 218,818,953.52
Jul-18 31 31 T18,818,953.52 1.5% 1,282,284.30 222,101,237.83
Aug-18 1 3l 222,101,237.83 1.5% 3,331,518.57 125,432,756,39
Bep-18 in 30 235,432,756.39 1.5% 1381,491.35 3T H14,247.74
Oee-18 i 1 228.814,247.74 1.5% 3,432,213.72 23224646046
Mav-18 10 0 232,246 461.46 1.5% 3,483,606.92 235,730,156.38
Dec-18 1 a1 235,730,156.38 1.5% 3,535,952.38 238,266,110.75
019 Jan-19 3l k)| ¥39,266,110.75 7% 1,588,991.66 242,855,102.41
Feb-19 28 % 242,855,102.41 1.5% 3,642 526,54 146,497,928,95
Mar-19 31 31 246,497,928.95 1.5% 1,697 468 93 290,195,397.89
Apr-19 30 30 250,195,397.89 1.5% 3,752.930.97 253,948 328 85
bay-19 il 31 253,948,322.85 1.5% 3,808,224.93 257,757,553.79
Jom-19 30 30 ¢ 257,751.551.79 1.5% 3,866,363,31 261,623,917.09
Jul-19 a1 11 ' 61,623,917.00 1.5% 3,924,158 76 265,548, 375 85
Ang-19 k1 3l 265,548,275.85 1.5% 1,983.224.14 265,531,499.99
Sep-19 30 a0 250,531,495.99 1.5% 4,042,972.50 273,574,472 49
Chct-19 11 3l 373,574,472,49 1.5% 4, 103,617.09 177.678,080.57
Mow-15 30 ki 277,678,085.57 1.5% 4,165,171.34 28],843,260.52
| Diec-19 3] 3l 281,843,260,92 1.5% 4,237,648.91 286,070,909.83
2020 Jan-20 31 1 2B6,070,909.23 1.5% 4,291,061.65 290,361,573.48
Feb-20 29 9 200,361,971.48 1.5% 4,355,420, 60 294,717,403.08
Mar-20 31 3 294,717,403.08 1.5% 4,420,761.05 199,138, 164.13
Apr-20 kL] 30 299,138, 164,13 1.5% 448707246 03,6525,236,59
Bfay-20 k]| 31 303,625,236.59 1.5% 4,554,378 55 308, 179,615.14
Jun-20 0 30 308,179,615.14 1.5% 4,622,694.23 312,802,309,37
Jul-20 il 3 312,802,300,37 1.5% 4,500 034,64 317,494, 344.00
Anp-20 1 il 317,494,344.01 1.9% 4,762,415 16 322,256,750.17
Sep-20 30 30 A22 25675017 1.5% 4,833,851.39 327,090,610.55
Oret-20 3 31 327,000,610.55 1.5% 4,506,359.16 331,995,968,71
Mov.20 0 30 331,596,965.71 1.5% 4,979,954 55 335,976,924 25
Dee-20 k) a1 336,976,924.26 1.5% 488, 160.05 137,465,084 31
Papnreut Received on 03122020 #4,726,287.00
Dec-20 18 11 262,738,797.31 1.5% 3,966,152.00 206,705,949.40
021 Jan-21 3 11 137,466,084.31 1.5% 5,061,991.25 H2.528,075.57
SUMMARY
TOTAL COMPOUND INTEREST TO DATE 130,589,961.47
ADD PRINCIPAL AMODUNT 215,904,246.20
SUBR-TOTAL 346,404,227.67
ADD COSTS OF REFERENCE 2,408,000.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF PAYMENT DUE 348 902,227,67
LESS TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED TO DATE {47,134,287.00)
PAYMENT AMOUNT NOW OUTSTANDING 301,767,540.67
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Do\a2\ 1Y egpite o st
Dear Sir, : Whie ege ;E,, -+l

NYORO CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LTD -PENDING BIL: ENA

8 - CO PKG/16A .

FURTHER INTEREST ACCRUED ON ARBITRAL AWARDS E (
UPDATED PENDING BILL AS AT 315 JANUARY 2021 NN 27, P
"'-:‘_h' x T T . {\:‘E_z'

Following conclusion of arbitration proceedings between the Ministry of Lodal- Grnvehﬁt-m’r-
(The Respondent) and Nyoro Construction Co Ltd (The Claimant), the Arbitrator awarded us
Ksh. 203,694,950.00 payable by 31* October 2017.

Arising out of your failure to disburse this payment in accordance with the timelines set by the
Arbitrator, the arbitral awards have been accumulating compound interest, which as at 16™

May 2019 had raised the pending bill to Ksh. 258,865,712.39.

Subsequently, we received part payment on 3™ December 2020 amounting to Ksh.
258,865,712.39.

Although receipt of the part-payment reduced the pending bill considerably, the outstanding
amount still continues to attract further compound interest as illustrated in the interest
computation sheets attached herewith.

Subsequently, we have tabulated hereunder a summary of the total amounts, inclusive of the
accumulated compound interest, outstanding as at 31* January 2021.

Pending Bill as at 16™ May 2019 258,865,712.39
Further Interest Accrued Upto 31% January 2021 97,744,238.24
Add Costs of Reference 2,982,215.00
Total Pending Bill as at 31% January 2021 359,592,165.63
Less Payment Received To Date (258,865,712.39)
Payment Amount Qutstanding 100,726,453.24







In view of the foregoing,  total payment of Ksh. 100,726,453.24 is outstanding in respect of
the arbitral award resulting from arbitration proceedings on Contract No. PKG/16A.

Please take note that this payment will still continue accruing further interest until full payment
is made. It is imperative, therefore, that this payment is settled at the earliest in order to avoid
further escalation of the compound interest.

Yours faithfully,

FOR NYORO CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LTD

Encls






WYOROD CONSTRUCTION CO. LTI

TERIODIC MATNTENANCE OF NAKURD TOWN ROADS - CONTRACT NO, PEG/GA
ABBITRAL AWARD : KSH. 203,694, 930.00

DATE OF AWARD: 15T GCTORER 2007

RATE OF INTEREST; 18% PER AMMIR = |.5% PER MONTH

OMPUTATION OF COMPOUND INTEREST FROXM 15T NOVEMBER 2017 TO J15T JANUARY 2021

mwoop | TOTALROOF | popyerpar RATE OF INTERESTFOR | PRINCIPAL
YEAR | MONTH | pove ”"‘;;f]w AMOUNT (KSH) INTEREST THE MONTH +INTEREST
017 Maw-17 30 k1] 203,654,950.00 L% 3,055424.35 106,750,374.25
Dec-17 3 3l 206,750,374.25 1.5% 3,101,255.61 206,851 629.86
2018 Jan-18 31 31 209,851,629.86 1.5% 3,147,774.45 212,999,404.31
Feb-18 28 I8 212,999.404_31 1.5% 3,154,991.06 214,194,395.38
Mar-18 il k| 216,194,395,38 1.5% 3,242,915.93 119.437.311.31
Ape-18 30 30 219,437,311.31 1.9% 3,291,559.67 212,728,870.98
May-18 il 3l 232,728,870.98 1.5% 3,340,933.06 226,069,804.04
Jun-18 30 30 726,060,804.04 15% 3,391,047.06 729,460,851.10
Jul-18 31 31 220,460,851.10 1.5% 344191277 742,902,763 87
Aug-18 3l 3l 232,902,763.87 L5% 3,493,541.46 734,396,305 33
Sep-18 ET) 30 236,306,305.13 1.5% 3,543,944.58 239.942,249.91
Oct-18 1l 31 239,942,249.91 1.5% 3,999,133.75 243,541,383.65
Mov-18 0 0 243,541,383.65 1.5% 3,653,120.75 247,194,504 41
Dec-18 3l T 247,194,504.41 1.3% 1,701917.57 250,502,421.98
2019 Tan-19 3l 3l 250,902,421.98 1.5% 1,763,536.33 254,665, 958.31
Feb-19 28 28 254,665,958.31 1.5% 3,819,989.37 251,435,947.68
Mar-19 3l T 258,485,947.68 1.5% 3,877,289.22 262,363,236.90
Apr-19 30 30 262,361,236.90 1.5% 3,935,448.55 266,298, 685.45
May-19 31 31 266,298,685.45 1.5% 3,994,480,28 270,193,165.73
Jun-19 30 0 270,291, 165.73 1.5% 4,054,397.49 274,147,563.22
Tul-19 3l 31 274,347, 563,22 1.5% 4,115,213 45 273,462,776.66
Auvg-19 3l 3l 278,462,776.66 1.5% 4,176,941 65 282,619,718.31
Sep-19 30 30 262,639,718.31 1.5% 4,239,593.77 266,879,314.09
Oct-19 3l 3 286,879,114.09 1.7% 4,303,189.71 291,182,503.80
Nov-19 30 30 291,182,503.80 1.5% 4,361,737.56 795,350,241 36
Dec-19 3 3l 295,550,241,36 1.5% 4,433,253.62 299,933,494.93
2020 Jan-20 3l 3l 209 ,083,404.98 1.5% 4,499,752.42 304,483,247.40
Feb-20 9 29 304,483,247.40 1.5% 4,567,248.71 305,050,496.11
Mar-20 3 3l 309,050,496.11 1.5% 4,635,757.44 313,686,253.5
Ape-20 30 30 313,686,253.56 1.7% 4,705,293.80 318,391,547.36
May-20 3l 3l 318,391,547.36 1.5% 4,775 8713.21 323,167 420,57
Jun-20 30 0 323,167,420.57 1.5% 4,847,511.31 320,014,931.58
Jul-20 3l 3l 328,014,931.88 1.5% 4,920,223.98 332,935,155.86
Aug-20 31 3l 332,935,155.86 1.5% 4,994,027.34 337,929,183.19
Sep-20 30 30 337,929,183.19 1.5% 5,068,937.75 342,958,120.94
Oct-20 31 3l 342,992,120,94 1.5% 5,144,971.81 343,143,092.76
Nov-20 30 30 348,143,002, 76 1.5% 5,222,146.39 353,365,239.13
Dec-20 E] 1l 353,345,239.15 1.5% 512,049.54 353,878,188.69
Paymient Received on 03/122020 258,865,712.39
Dee-20 8 £} 1 0501247630 1.5% 1,287 265 81 05,290, 74211
2021 Jan-2| il 31 065,299, 742.11 1.5% 1,444,496.13 §7,744,238.24
TOTAL COMPOUND INTEREST TO DATE 152,915,000.63
ADD PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 203,694,950.00
UB-TOTAL 356,609,550.63]
ADD COSTS OF REFERENCE 2.942,215,00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF PAYMENT DUE 158,591,165.63
LESS TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED TO DATE {258,865,712.39)}
PAYMENT AMOUNT NOW OUTSTANDING 100,726,453.24
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Current Period Frevious period
Account No and Description Diehil Ba Credit Balance Deblt Balance Credit Balanc
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2X08M Calering Services [receplions), 1,854 379,00 .0 1,648, 235 00
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Lmnmmﬁﬁmml Aids and T66,01500 a 4540000 6.00
B
{11111 Purchasa of IGT Netwarking snd 7 B, 063 1 a0
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Current Period Previous period
Account Mo and Description _ Debit Balancs Crodit Balance Debit Bal Balan
Gmmmmﬁ%! L Enee Cradit c
3111112 Purchase of Soflware aog 0.00 [T
3111114 Purchasz of § inmeent ~0.00 noo B0 T
3117100 Purchas= of Spaciaiaed Pland, 45 ET A0 00 THE, ORE GO, 4 —
M%_{HHMWY ;
M”;':ar ra-lapsibility, Feasibdily and EITE1E TR0, M0 T 33,708,825 30
Aparn Shudias " N
3711400 Research, Faaaibiiy Sodies, Projat SATATA T o | 38,798 A6 20
tafian and Supendsion
3111504 Ordher Infrastneches and Civil Warks 040 [ =5, 185,559, 25
3311500 Rghabilllaien of Cral Works [ aon B, 165 ean.2n
3110000 Asquisian ﬂﬂﬁﬁhgﬂi Assals 4,550,547, 201.40 0,00 14478, 372,740.18 S,
5120201 Borrowing fram Fareign qurnmenu 0.00 (.00 000
5120202 Barowing rom Inbemalional oo Tha,559,a15.80 GT0) TAz0EE,
iEalians
51::%&_ ereign Berrowing-Direel Papments T T4, B98 815,60 .00 SA 5,004,
5120000 Currenzy and Deposits, Accawnis THE] T64, 85 A 15,00 o _w.lﬂ-,
Pawuﬁmmmwmmm : AL e s
& B P s SR
E510287 Mairakl Metropalilan Servce 6.0 (1] T
Im S
GE10281 Narobi M Sarvica TEE(ES o.0a 41,677 563 8
I  Project
a5 -10-E418-UH 188845 (i) A1 677,66285
PROGRAMME-M
BS10000 & Accounth T.E8405 (X A1ETT 61 5
E530107 Miniskry HO Recurent Bank AIC EIFENT 0,00 TH3, 106,40
6530100 Recument Bank Atcounts 41,835,156 0,08 e, 166 80
0000 Returen Bark Accounts +1,s:5.14 [T§ 793, 196.40 5
540101 Ministry HO opmenl Bank A K] 0.o0 3.028,0
[ 8540100 Bl Bank Accounts 50,601 15 i) LR LT
| 8541127 Kenya Urban Suppan Programme 230/571,640 35 003 | 907,285373.05
Accoinl
6541138 Mairabki Metropaitan Senios 31,5040 7] (T3]
Emprovernant Prajact Cpart Fund
| ESdi1a0 20,100, 79575 [ 107,265, 374,05
| EE40000 Davelopment Bank ACSOLAE 53,3740 [XT] i 5100
BS50101 Minsiry Hi Deposit Bank %l%lmu oo 338,130,41
S550100 Kaaya Baly Dabt far Developmant a.00 a0 [
B55014 t framm Government Building and 343230 0.0a T40,500,00
Huusing AlA(Bank)
6250143 Rant fram Governmanl Bulding &nd 0,00 10 000
Housing Al& sl
BES0T00 Bank Accounts 445,164, 58T 55 T3] 338,271,417,
.Eﬁ:qg,i%aﬂfﬂarﬂ @.ﬂt EICRTERET) [T 38771, 31785 |
| 6580901 Cash .00 0,00
B5E0104 Cash in Transit 1,755,050 00 0.0 .00
BEE100 Eagh in Hand 1,788, BR o0 ] 000
BSBO000 Cashlnband -~ - - - l.l'iﬂﬂﬁ"ﬂ [ 8,00 T
6550203 NSIMET SERV.| ENT 0.00 [ 0.00
PROJECT CPART FND -
B580200 F [] 0,00
mﬁm %ﬂ_ﬂ [B i T o.oo |, 1
EF10103 Salary ud'--lrhm ! 0.00 000
' s A T
4/ 3 o iy .00 [ T3] e B X ;i i
2 50 ] — it ——
aﬂumzm atm_ LI 0.00 [T ]
6740100 Diver Dabtors & Fro e o Tl — i
] E Pre ts 0.00 [T 5_5_3 i
GT60101 Standing kmprests (] ] i
B7EI103 T | 8l [ 0.00 1,055,635 55 [
Baa000 [ 0,00 1005, H 15 —
&7 1= 0.00 [T 1,08 25 [}
101 kler-Ministerial Al 0.00 [T] 0. i
. BFFO00 Minis k5 L] 600 0.00 — 4
s a.00 9, 4 ro U
870101 Gmm%gﬁmm ﬂﬁ ‘g‘if —ﬁ' [
E7B0103 Dislncd Suspensa Alc 0.00 0.00 0,00 E
BEAOYO0 & & Clésmnoe Acoount ] [T L] [
&7 0,69 800 #.00 ; [
[ Racei Frveniony A H’l!l— B0 a
B7R0100 Other ) (11 ) i
[ .00 L ﬂﬁ Puﬁ Lo a
7310101 Ganeval Depasils B0 ERLTEITES 0.0 35,540,000
wm [T 0.00 [
P & ol B



> Current Period Previous period
Account No and Description Debit Balance Cradit Balance Debit Balance Credit Balance
23 ’ “"‘ —Semmseaor
o.on %_n 0.00
(] L [T 0.0 |
Ho oo L] o0 |
[T 7] TEE] 0.0a
0 [ 0,00 Y]
.00 oa | 0.0 i |
.00 o .00 [
.00 .00 o a0 |
0,00 0.00 6.0 0.00
L] .00 o.00 000 |
o.00 (] -1 0.00
(L] w00 000 0.0 |
T L] LI B.00
(] L T (1)
i T3] ] tod
0, Ha0 50| 00 |
.00 0,00 (1] 0,00
[ To0 0.00 000
.00 745,101 145,65 [:1 30,190.411.55
(7] 448, L1 A3AIT,
o P[] oo D00 |
B0 mon ooy T |
000 i ;] N * ii;ﬂ%
(1] GO0 ?&
Gl g noa
50 | (1] 7 R
] ] 000 .00
] 0,00 0,00 0.00 |
e B.00 .00 |
L] B.00
~ o
non g
L] oo
aoo LI
‘Ii..Tli,m,ﬂ 488.50
V8, 718.290.50 |
T |
ong
[I]
5340 458,854 10
8, 07.800, 86470 |
o6, 710,210, 800,80 oE, 718,010, B00.63 4,860,

The Statsment has been prepared, reviewed and approved by the Following:

Prepared By: Dafte: =5
Reviewsad By Dale:
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REFUELIC OF KENYR

B e —————

F.0. 30 BANK RECONCILIATION

From Date = 0l-JUL-20 To : 26-JUL-21
pank : Central Bank of Kenya . pranch : Haile Selassie ,

1094 REC-STAIE
Account Number i 1000395516

page 1 of 2

DEPT FOR HOUSING AMND URH

Balance as per bank wrtiﬁ:ate[ E

ﬂ.ﬂq

L

Less -
1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement

{Unpresented Cheques)
5 Receipis in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book
Add -

3. Payment in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book | #tEEﬁﬁ
4. Recelpts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement

[ Bank Balance as per Cash El‘-nnﬂ | 41.525@

Reconciled by: Slgnature: Date:

Reviewed by : Signature: Date:

Date:

Approved by: Signature:




F.o. 30

From Date :

REFUBLIC OF KENYA

EANK RECONCILIATION

0l=-JUL=20 To : 26-JUL-21
Bank : Central Bank of Kenya , Eranch :

Chaqgue

|

Page !

1054 REC-STATE DEPT FOR ROUSIN
Halle Selasale , Account Number : 1000355516

L. FAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT { UNPRESENTED CHEQUES) _-

Mo

I Date

No | Date Fiyse A
Total :
1. RECEIPTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Receipts
No [ Date J i
Total :
3. PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Cheque
Mo Date M
HONREF 23-JUL-21 Transfer 41
Total 41
4, RECEIFTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Receipts
Ad

Tuotal :




REPUBLIC OF KENYA page 1 of 2

F.0. 30 BANK RECONCILIATION

' 1094 DEV-STATE DEPT FOR HOUSING UEBAN @

From Date @ 01-JU0L-20 To : 26-JUL-21
Bank : Central Bank of Kenya - Branch : Haile Selassie , Account Husber : 1000355583

I._ Balance as per bank certificate | I' [!I.‘J_l;lh

Lesz -

1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement
{Unpresented Cheques)

7. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

Add -
3. Payment in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book m.ﬁﬂi.ﬁ

4. Receipts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement |

Bank Balance as per Cash Book | E _ﬁﬂ.ﬁﬂ‘l-ﬁ

Reconciled by: Signature: Date:

Reviewed by : Signature: Date:

Approved by: Signature: 5] - — e




REPUBLIC OF KENYA
BANK RECONCILIATION

Page 2
F.0. 30 ®

Frem Date : 01-JUL=-20 To : 26-JUL-21 1094 DEV-STATE DEPT FOR HOUSIH
Bank : Central Bank of Henya , Branch : Haile Selassie , Account Number : 1000395583

1. PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT { UNFRESENTED CHEQUES)
Cheque .

e | Data Payec Al

Tatal :

I RECEIFTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOORK

Receipis
No ] Date A
Total :
3. PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Cheque
Mo Date An
MNOMNREF 23-JUL-21 Transfer 506
Tatal : 50,6
4. RECEIPTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Receipts
No | Date AR

s Taotal :




PEPUBLIC OF EENYA Fage 1 of 2
F.0. 30 BANK RECONCILIATION

From Date : 01-JUL-20 To : 09-JUL-21 1094 DEP-STATE DEPT FOR HOUSING AND URE
Bank : Central Bank of Kemya , Branch : Hails celassie , Account Number : 1000355672

[ Balance as per bank naﬂrﬁt:al_'nl |_ “*_5-1“‘-3“553]
Lesg =

1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement
(Unpresented Chegues)

F.T& ceipts in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

Add -
'3. Payment in Bank Statement net yet recorded in Cash Book

| 4. Recelpts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement

[ : Bank Balance as per Cash En-nkl | 445,101 .EBE.Bﬁ

Reconciled by: Signature: Date:

Reviewed by : Signature: Date:

Approved by: Signature: 111 1| SR— sassessimanns




F.O. 30

REPUBLIC OF EENYA

BANK RECONCILIATION

From Dake 1 01-J0L-20 To : 05-JUL-21

Bank : Central Bank of Kenya , Branch : Haile Zelasajie , Account Humber :

bage 2

1054 DEP-ETATE DEPT FOE HOUSING

1000355672

L PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT ( UNFRESENTED CHEQUES)

[ [x]

Data

Chequea
No [ Date CHR oy
Tatal :
2. RECEIPTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED 1IN CASH BOOK
Receipts
Mo | Date Am
; Tatal
3. PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BEOOK
Cheque
No [ Date Amn
Tatal :
4. RECEIPTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Receipts
furme

Total ;




page 1 of 2

i REPUBLIC OF KENYA
F.0. 30 BANK RECONCILIATION

From Date 1 01-JUL-20 To @ 26-JUL-21 1054 KENYA URBAN SUPPORT PROGRAMME
Bank : Central Bank of Kenya , Branch : Haile Selassie , Account Number : 1000356546

| [— ~ Balance as per bank t:eﬂi‘ﬁl:-'!hl r 239,071 j#ﬁ.aq

Less -

1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement
(Unpresentad Chagues)

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

Add --

3. Payment in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

4. Roceipts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement

Bank Balance as per Cash Book] | 239,071,646.3

Reconciled by: Signature:

Reviewed by : Signature: Date:

Approved by: Signature: ; Date: w.ivmmmmmsmmmnn S




REPUBLIC OF EENYA Paga 2 ¢
F.0. 10 BANK RECONCILIATION

From Date : 01-JUL-20 Te ¢ 26-JUL-21 1094 KENYA URBAM EUPPORT PROGEAM
Bank : Central Bank of Kemya , Branch : Haile Selassia , Account Fumber : 1000396346

1. PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT { UNFRESENTED CHEQUES)

Chegusa
o I- Date Payea A
Total :
2. RECEIPTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Receipts
No I Date e
Tatal :
3. PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Chegue
No [ Date Aamc
Total :
4, RECEIPTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Receipts
No [ Date At

Total :




page 1 of 2

REPUBLIC OF KENVA

¥.0. 30 BANE RECONCILIATION
10654 NAIRDBI METROPOLITAN EERYV IMPER FRC

From Date ¢ 0l-JUL=20 To : I0-JUH=-21
Haile Selassie , Account Mumber : 1000356954

pank : Central Bank of Kenya . Branch :
I_ Balance as per bank certificate | [ 1_@4&
Less -

1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement
(Unpresented Chagues)

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

Add -

3. Payment in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book

3. Receipts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement

| Bank Balance as per Cash Book | [ 1,884.95
Reconciled by: Slgnature: Date:
Reviewead by : Signature: Date:

Approved by: Signature: -1 7=} S —— R




F.o. 3D

From Date :

01-JUL=230 To : ID-JUN-21
Bank : Central Bank of Kenya , Branch :

REPUBLIC OF KENYA
BANK RECONCILIATION

Fage 2 o«

1094 MAIRDBRI METROPOLITAN SERV I
Haile Selassie , Account Mumber : 1000396554

1. FAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT { UNFRESENTED CHEQUES)

Mo

Date

Chaque
T I Date Payee Am
Total ;
2 RECEIFTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Receipts
Ho [ Date A
Taotal :
3. PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Cheguea ]
No T Date A
Tatal ;
4. RECEIFTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Recelpts
Ame

Taotal ;




REPUBLIC OF KENYR page 1 of 2
F.0. 30 BANK RECONCILIATION

prom Date : 01-JUL-20 To : 26-JUL-21 1054- WAMSIP (COUNTER FUND)
gank : Central DBank of Fenya , Branch : Haile Selassie , Account Humher : 10003596934

| Balance as per bank certificate [ 31.590.451
Less --
1. Payment in Cash Book not yet recorded in Bank Statement
{Unpresented Cheques)
2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet recorded in Cash Book
Add -

3. Payment in Bank Statement not yet recorded In Cash Book

4. Recelpts in Cash Book not yet Recorded in Bank Statement 1.'-"55.940-“3
Bank Balance as per Cash Book | | 1,787,530.4(]

Reconciled by: Signature: 1551

Reviewed by : Signature: i 121 - —

Approved by: Signatura: [ 7] . "




F.0. 30

REPUBLIC OF KENYA
BEANK RECONCILIATION

From Dake : 01-JUL-20 To : 26-J0L=21

pank : Central Bank of Kenya , Branch : Heile Selassie , Account Humber :

Fage 2 o

1094 - HAMETF (COUNTER FUND)

1000396538

L. PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT ( UNFRESENTED CHEQUES)

Total :

Cheque
Mo [ Date i s
Tuatal :
2. RECEIFTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IN CASH BOOK
Receipts
No | Date Ame
Total :
1L PAYMENTS IN BANK STATEMENT NOT YET RECORDED IMN CASH BOOK
Cheque
No | Date A
Tatal
4, RECEIFTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
Receipts
Amo
No [ Date oo :
MNOMREF | 30-JUN-21 1,755,940
1,765,940




L ra
T 4

Current Period

Note Previous Period
Kshs Kshs
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and Cazh Equivalents i
Bank 5 22A EB4,302 195.85 A51,856,521.90
Cash Balances 228 0.00 0.00
Total Cash And Cash Equivalents EB4,302,196.85 491,856,627.90
Acounts Recevables - Outstanding Imprest | 23 1,765,940.00 1,085,635 65
and Clearence Accounts
[TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS BB6,058,135.85 493,052,163.55
Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payables - Daposits 24 448,5586,760.05 383,370,417.55
HET FINANCIAL ASSETS 737,458,376.80 108,681,746.00 |
REPRESENTED BY -
Fund Balance bitwd 25 109,601,746.00 4957,923,681.10
Prior Year Adjustment 26 {5,817,E10.00] | 1,093,215.85)
Surplus/Deficit for the Year _ 133,634,438.80 {387,14E,918.25) |
NET FINANCIAL POSITION 237,498,376.80 108,661,746.00
The Statement has been prepared, reviawed and approved by the following:
Prepared By: Date:
Reviewed By: Date:
Approved By: Data:
Paga ol 1

Priskeed on: 30-ALG-F031 20:38
Prinke fry: MUHLILF







Recelpts and operating income
Tax Receipls i 0.00 0.
Social Securily Contribution z — 0.00 0.00
[ Froceeds from Domestic and Foreign | 3 0.00 0,00
Granks —_
Excheguer releasas 4 25.091,504,523.10 21,647 409 208,20 |
Transfars from Other Govermment 5 0.00 0.00
Enliti=s
Raimbursements and Refunds [ 0.00 0,00 |
Retumns of Equily Healdings 0 o 0.00 A .00
| Other Recelpts 11 A73,305,571.45 ~— 724,200,105.00
| Payments for Operating Expenses —
Compensation of Employaes 12 H&%HE.SD 643, 138,35
Lise of goods and Services 13 13,913.491.730.55 1,710,777,650.38 |
Subsidies 14 0.00 . 0.00
Transfers o Other Government Units | 15 7,026,968,122.70 8,345,125, 494.10
Qfher Grants and Transbers 16 .60 0.00
Social Securily Benefils L 0.00 0.0d
Tr:'ﬁ'l@unm _Including Loan Inlerest | 19 _0.00 0.00
Oihar paymants 21 0.00 T 0.00
Adjusted for : F £
Adjustments during the year 64,529,008.15 (00,274, 526.20)
Prior year adjustments {5,817,810.00) (1,083, 215.85
Met Cash From Operating Activities A 4.#1?.!!3.113._55 TIJ_.E'_!I.E?I.E?E.H-
Cazh Flow From Investing Actlvities -
Proceads from Sales of Assels B 0,00 060
ton of Assels 18 4,990,547 261.40 14,-Tiﬂg?m1u
Mzt Cash Flow From Investing B {4,900, 547 261.40) (14,479,372, 720.10)
Activities
Cash Flow From Borrowing Activithes
Proceeds from Domestic ﬁmawlng.-. [ .00 0.00
Proceeds from Fﬂﬂg Barrawings 7 764,999, 815.60 3,420,884,702.45 |
Repayrment pal on Domestic 0 0.0 0.0
and Foreign Bomowing
Met Cash Flow From Financing c 764,899 815.80 3,42&55#.?02.45
Activitios -
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH | A+B+C 162,345,667 05 478,516,661,30)
EQUIVALENT
Cash and Cash Equivalent at 451,056,527 90 G70,473,188.20
BEGINMING of The Year
Cash and Cash Equivalent at END of | 22A+228 684,302,195.85 491,956 52790
The Year
The Statement has been prepared, reviewed and appraved by the following:
Frepared By: Dabe: -
Reviewad By: Diate:
Approved By Data:
Privied o 20-A105- 3031 6928 Pageiali

Prinied b






T

Item Description ftem Code ‘Current Period Previous Period
T N o 5
Taxes on Incoma, and Capilal Gains 111 a o
Taxes on Em_uﬂ and Warkfores 1120000 o |
KBS o 1130000 000 6.00
Taxes on Goods 1140000 [T 0.0 |
Taxae on IMemalional Trade and Transacions 150000 i
HER elsavhare o.o0 000 |
TOTAL 1] |
Sochal Security Contribution
ltem Description item Code Current Period Previous Period
Kshs izhs |
FHiealih Insuranca Coniibuban [P 0,00
MHIF Heallh Insurance Coninbulons 1210200 1] H/00 |
Emmﬁmmﬁmﬁ 121 ooo ]
Valfare Schemes
[ et TOTAL i
Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign Grants
item Dascription Item Code Current Pariod Previous Period
Kshs_ Kzha
Grants n 1310000 and ool |
rants from Infernational nizalions 1 0o .00
TOTAL 1= o.00
Excheguer releases
Item Description ftemn Code Current Period Previous Pariod
= Feha Wahs
Exchequer Relaasan Provisioning Account S0 500,504,523, 10 1,647,800, 208,20
TOTAL TB0G1 00450500 | 21BATA00,206.20 |
Transfers from Othar Government Entities
Item Description ftem Code Current Pericd Previous Period
Kahs Fshs
Granis recenvad by Central ovi from General Gon TEA0100 1] m
units
Grants Receivad from General Gavt units by Locsl T330200 Y] o0 |
Autharitiag |
| Granis bo Fund Accounis from Genlral Govt ;ﬁm‘ 1330300 (1] B |
“mn o General Govi units Govt | 1330400 B0
TOTAL 0.0 |
Proceeds from Domestle Borrowings
ltem Description tom Coda | Current Pariod Pravious Period
Gt i
10100
10200 0.00 T |
10300 0.00 (1]
5110400 .00 B0 |
10500 [T 0.00
5110500 0,00 [
0,00 oo |
Progeads from Forelgn Bomowings
Page 1T

Prinled on: 12-BEP-2021 21:17 Printed by:



[Hem Description Item Coda Current Period Previous Period
Kahs Kshs

F Banosings - Drawdawnt He20100 aoa .00
Free ﬁﬁn Direa Paymants e 5120200 TEANGAEIEED | 4008, 70045 |
Foreign Gurr 5120900 oo ]

rrancy and Foreign Daposils

ther Forsign Accounts Payable 5120400 0.00 0,00
L= TOTAL TAGEEEED | AN A
& Procesds Irom Sales of Assels
Item Description Item Code Current Period Previows Period
Kaha Kshes
FRECEIEiE o (e Gaie Of BLidings - Paid 1o AnTaion 0100 0ED

Ex
0.00 0.0

Fazgipts fram tha Sale of Buldings 3510200

nmm!:'ﬁ'n'm' of other st 3510000 .00 0,00
A saie of ather al 3510400 .00 0.00
'_ﬁ'.muémmsmuwm end | ransport 3510500 a0 T

uipment - Paid bo !
ml-ﬂmhg%nf Wehicies and Transport IET0GI0 a.ah B.00

: tﬁﬁh&&mmtham [TiTe] 0.3 0,00
i - Peid to Excheguear
%ﬁmﬁmﬂ\: Sale Plant Machinary and AR10800 003 (T
| Equigmsani
Recsipts fom Sale of Certihed Seeds and Breeding 510800 000
Sroch - Paid ta ﬁm
Fecapls from Sale of Cerihed Seeds and Breedng 3517000 .00 i)
Stack
“Fecmpts from the Sale of Sralegic Reserves Glocks | 9520100 [ 0 |
ceipts from the Sale of Other inveniones, BlOCkS, 52000 0.00 1]
and Commodiies
Feceipts from ihe Sk of Invariomas, Stocks and 520300 0.0 0
Commedifies =
Reczints from tha Sale of Land 3540100 ] aoo
Recapls e Sale of Other Maturaly Occurning 3540200 oo
Man-Produced Assats
[Tiaceipts from the Sale of Inlsngie Non-Produced n .00 .00 |
As5ES
Rizceipts fam the Sae of Mar-Producad Assets F5afa00 [T g |
Collecied as AlA
Repayments from Laans o Gevenment Sgencas snd | 4510900 ] o5 |
Qiher Levels of Gavernment -
Loans bo Nan-Financial Public Enlerpises AT0a00 T Y]
Loans o Fnance) Insbbbions 4510300 00d i |
Rapaymanis from Domeshc Loans b ldiviouals and | 4510400 o 000 |
Hausahoids
[ Rapaymeants fram landing & Foregn Govs, 520100 -1 (L
% ko Inbemabonal Grgns. LS00 i [l
lending to Forsign Man - Financial | | 4520300 000 LT

Entarps. & Financs! Instns,
ﬁu from Gther Fﬂh' LerﬁgE 4520400 [T (1]
Sales and Disposals of Equily HOMINGS EEEEE] G T

Puliz haon - Financal Enberpisas
Bales and Dispasald of Equily HOGNgs i Oomesee | 4530000 0 o0
Public Finandal Instiutions
Bale= and Disnosals of Dlbar AEI000 000 B0
Sales and Disposals ngs In Foreign 4530400 oiad 000 |
Financial instre. and Domestic Finencial Insins
| cprerating abroad
Sales and Diapasals of Equity Holdings in Foreign 4R30500 0,00 00 |
Enbanps. Firamnsal Inatns. and Domestic Finandal
M*W
[5] e Financal Asseis 4530600 R (X
Feafund gﬂmdug%_ﬁﬁ;m for Guaranbass 4530700 (] 000
TOTAL 080 000 |
8  Reimbursements and Refunds
ilem Description Item Code Current Pariod Previous Period
Feha Wzhs
Fefund from WWark Food P ViEF) 4540101 a0 0,00
ﬁm:ﬂiﬁ m 4540102 —Eﬁ% 009 |
| Relmbursement an Ehnqu 2540103 Taa
[ Reimoursement iom Barik - 2540104 4,00 0,00
Trom indhiduals 4540105 (T3] .00
Fage2al?
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Itzm Description Item Code Current Pariod Previous Peried
[ Grgarizations
Reimbursement fom Local Govarnment Authonbes 2540106 0. iiE
fram Swmbulo one — | ABADI0T .00 000 |
Reai Gayammant A5A0109 [ 0,00
Reimbursement Bonds a5a0109 .00 0 |
Relmbursements and Refunds - Other .| 4HD199 00 G |
TOT (] [T)
10 Retumns of Equity Holdings
Item Description ltem Code Current Period Previous Period
Hare Kas |
Relms of Haldings ASE0000_ (T3] ]
Ralums Huoldings — o 0.0 |
TOTAL i 500
11 Other Receipls
| ftem Deseription fem Code Current Pariod Previows Perlod
Fzha Fshs |
Intarest Recaived 410900 00 ]
a1 o.00
Withdrawals from Income of uasi-corporabons Ell 1] o.00 |
Renis on I8N0, houses and buidings 410400 BT 30557145 724,396, 15000 |
E% Income collected as Ak Ta10500 1] 60
1415000 .00 00 |
[ Beles of Markek Estabizhment RA000 0.00 00 |
Adminisatve Fees and CNanges A0 [
Adminislralive Fees Bnd Lhames colecied ms ALA 40300 L 009 |
Salas 14304 0.00 00 |
catal Ta20500 [ O
Colleciad a5 AlA
FomBaie of Mcdental Goods 140600 (LD 00 |
P [ Charges 1430100 [l o |
Current Grants Mi=03 paid through. | 1440700 0 ao |
Capital mi=mational M08 1840200 1] (1]
LT
";ﬁﬁt‘ﬁmﬁm [emabonal NGOs collecied as || 1440390 CI] Bo0
Enﬁmw oo B0
Cther Vol Transters far Current Ta40500 [T] 600 |
Cither Voluntary Translers for Laphal purposes [1:7] O]
Paid o T 850100 000 B0 |
Eﬁu‘ti Clas=ihad Eleawhan 1450200 o, 00
1510200 (1] 0 |
1510300 a.00 000 |
1520100 [ [1H
Business Permits 520200 LI 00 |
Ceanag B2000 0,00 000 |
Fal Rates SR0400 0 T3]
Fiot Fonts ~ 00 s |
Cithor Local Levies 520600 0,00 o0 |
Adminisralive Sarvices Fees 530100 ]
Warnous J530200 (L] ooy |
“Councirs Nakural Resources Exploisson 530300 00 (L]
E OF Coundl Asasts 530400 000 [
Lease § fental OF Gouncl & Infresiruchune Assets 1530500 RL) T |
Oiller Mi=callansous Revenees - 1530600 G oo |
Dihar Miscallaneous Revenuas 1540700 [ [
Insurance Giaims 1840200 [ Qoo
e Loans (1-3 ¥r 1543300 1] [T
Term Loans 1540400 i |
Transfers From Funds 1540500 (1] G |
Denasons 1540600 0.0 Q.02
Fund 1540700 oo |
& From FINANciEl Asscls Loan 1 L] e |
1541000 (1] 1]
WarkeliTrags Cenve Fan_ 1550100 [ and
Vehice Parking I ecs 1550200 L 00 |
Heusing 1550100 L 00
Social Premises Use Charges 550200 60 .
Schoal Feas fE70100 oo Hoo
[ Oiher Eoucation-Nielated Fees 1570200 b0 0
DOiher Educetion Rovenues 1570300 LT G |
Paga ol 7



Hem Description ltem Coda Current Period Pravious Period
Public Heallh Services 80 | 0. B0
Publiz Heallh Fazilies Oparaions 580200 ] B0 |
Emvronment & Cansenvansy Adminislralion 1580300 (] [17)
| Slaughter Houses Administragian 1580400 oo oo |
Waker Supply Administration 1530500 ooo a0a
Ewﬂ'ﬂ? Ackninishraton 1S50E00 C.om [iX17i]
Other Heallh & Sanalion Revanies TREA G0 0.0 G |
Services Fees 1630900 0,04 000
Extermal Services Feos 1530200 LS (]
1930100 oo oo
Eysiam Reguved Revenua cs femon | ] e |
TOTAL (R T To 555 185 50 |
12  Campensation of Employess
ltem Deseriplion [t Cade - Cwrrent Period T Previous Perind
Fahs ¥shs
| Basic Salnes - Permanenl Empayees 2110100 AB4B52,271.00 AR s B T8 |
BESIC 5- T8 BES 2110200 a.00 7.873,73550
noaE pak as pan ry 2110300 180,406,024 20 75,465 20560
NCES a5 R 10400 [Xex] B0 |
Personal Allowances provided in Kind 2110500 1] B |
Employer Conlrbubions b Compulsory Masonal Sacial | 2120100 LT B0 |
Secuily Bchemes
Emplayer Cangibulions 1o Compasery Healh F1a0200 L] .64
Insurance Schemes
Saocial Bengfit Schames Oulsila Govermment F120300 oo (]
TOTAL 250,795 60 E434EE, 13835
13  Use of peods and Services
Item Descripfion ltem Coda Current Period Previous Period
Hshs WEng |
Udlifies, Supphes and Services 2210100 14,072,062 40 T0,137,878,30
Communication, Supplies and Services 2310200 3,935 A6E0 A 857,590 69
Dome=sc Travel arcd SubSstarce, and OEer 2310300 B, &R0 B00.00 0,147,857
Trarspartatian Cosls
Foreign Travel and Subalstenca, and other 2210400 1,534, 452,00 ZA5A 3020
transperlatian cagts
Brinfing , Advertising and infarmation Suppies and FIT T 1.778,387.00 3,740, 760.00
Servicas
Renlals of Produced Asseis TH0E00 00, 138,571.50 = 113,602008 35
Training E 5 2210700 LIRS | o083z |
[ Hospitatty Supplies and San 10800 ST 0 5 288.271 00
Insurance Casts EFITD] [ (1]
Spesaised Materals and Sups 2211000 T &.608,68200 E.139,645.40
and Generel Supslas and Geraces 2211100 A GRS R | 13,462,305 3%
Fual Gl and m 2211200 401327500 & 008852 15 |
Diher Operaling Expenses FF IR 13,734,767 51,25 538,021 AS 60
Rautne Maintenances . Vehides FEIT00 — &TBEfioo| 550508825 |
Routing Meirtanancs - Oher Azasla 20200 & ST An. a0 1,855,237.30 |
Exchange Fiabe Losses 2230100 e —TT
TOTAL 15,813,451, 10088 | 1,710,777 650,35
14 Bubsidies
Item Description item Code Current Period Previous Period
Kshs K=ns
_Gubsidies ta PUbiiC GCorparaions 2510000 aoa [
Subsidies ba Private Enterprises 2520000 (T3] 0.00
TOTAL i) oo |
18 Transfers to Odher Government Linits
ltzm Description Hem Code Current Period Pravious Period
[ Waha | Ksha
CUMent Grants 1o Govemnmen] Agencies and other 2630100 — 4Z000000.00 | #1.000,00000 |
Levels of Government
Canllal Granks s Govemmeant Agences and alher FHI0200 E,564,568, 12270 0,335,135 454,10
Loeveds af Goverrement
| O¥her Cument Transiers, Grants end Subsidies 540400 [T ;l_ﬁ
e Capilal Granks ard Trans FEA0500 (1) oo
TOTAL TIGEGEE 122,90 | 5,345, laa 10 |
Paged ol T
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16 Other Grants and Transfers

[Ttem Description Item Code Current Period Previous Period
Kshs Fshs
Grants and Transiers Io Foreign Gowamments FE10100 G oo
Membership Fees and Dues and SUbscripbons o FR20100 om0 LT3
e
=5 and Dues and Subscrpions B3 THZA00 “Ho0 (17
Inépmational Qrganizaions “Erﬁgﬂ
5 gnd other ficnal Bengfts TE40100 o 0 |
iof and Ra Asalstance 2540 [T T |
uEr:::m Smal Dusinesses, Cooparatives, and Seif ~Han o |
ZH4a500 0,00 600 |
TOTAL .00
17 Social Bocurily Benafits
Item Description jiem Code | Current Period Previous Period
Hahs Fishs
Gawemmant Pension and Retiement Benehts 2710100 00 |
Sacl Benelils =5 271 L] [
Social 5 2710300 L1 o |
Fihurd of Pension i UK Government 2720100 1) 600
[ Ristund of Conlribulions i WCPS and other Ex-Gratia 720200 03 0. |
T'DTAL_ Lifre]
18  Acguisition of Assats
"ftem Description Item Code Current Period Previous Period
Kshs Hshe
T Buis Fi0p00 S— E—
of Bui 3110200 02, 75 T.072,481,158
Refurbishment of 3710300 T Tl | i, 748,853 50
on 5 310400 763 00
Congtruction and Civil Warks 3110500 TIREETIATAN0 | 10416 23500 |
Overhaul and Fefurbishment of Conatruction and Givll | 3110500 W.TW
“Furchase of venices and Oeher Tra [ 3110700 004 | ~A0,620,000,00 |
Diverhiaid and Other Tz—ggmnt 3110800 LI (L
Purchase of Housshoid Fumine and insbiutional 11000 0,00 T |
%ﬁl’mmw Ganers o FT1I000_ 521 55800 227, 500.00
Purchaze Flank, Equpmen T N L A E 28000, 001,40 |
e st Faresvation of Far, Wsiinary | 3117200 =5 o
| Equipment
PBurchase of Carlified Seeds, Breeding Siogk snd Live | 3111300 * 000 CX)
Animals
mﬁﬂl. Fﬂﬁ Shudies, Project Preparaion and | 3111400 137 610, 160.10 R T
] Iml ¥
Eﬁimu 111600 ool 3, 155,850.35 |
[ Purchase of Speoalised Prant 2300 ~0.00 oo |
of Stralagic Stocks 120100 {7 0 |
fion of Other Irvenio 3120200 L] 0
ﬁmﬁﬁ_ﬁ 100 o.00 T |
ﬁ Lqmmu Iniangile Azaals _ n% o G0 |
g;g‘ g 411 0,00
e 5 B T
Dicsmea Facevable 30000 G |
Forsgn and On- Lending 4340000 a o
Fores Putcsglnqn 4150000 L] B0 |
Dither Foneign Accounts Receivable 41 [ o0 |
TOTAL ORI | VEATLATETAA 10
10 Finance Costs, Inchuding Loan Interest
ltem Description ftem Code Current Period Previous Period
T ) o A
ricrest Faymants on F 410 000 0
eeest Payments on Guaranteed Debi_ 2410200 .00 |
mﬂﬂm%ﬁl 2450000 5.6 |
mieresl 60 Fram Govamment (2430000 000 600
TOTAL ELZ B0
30 Repayment of Principal on Domestic and Faoreign Bomrowing
Fagn ST
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Item Description Item Code Current Period Previous Period
Kahs | Rafs |
Repaymants on Boroaings from General Govemment | 5510100 000 | [0
Repayments on Bomrowings from Monatzny A SE1000 L] oo
aniral Bank)
EpEYITRMS on Borrawings fom Oler Dameshc E510300 T.00 im0
Depasitory Corporalions [Cammencal Banks)
Repayments on Barowings rem Ofer Domesic 5510400 a0 aog
Financial inslilutiong .
Fepaymants on Borewirgs fram Olher Domesis 5510500 .60 hog
Cradilors
Frncpal Repayments an Fareign Bormowing S5 10600 aad [1=5]
F‘niru:i% Fapaymenis on Guaranizs Taken BEIOI00 ong T
gar by Govarnmant
Princpal Fepayments an Guarantosd Domesic Debt | G520100 a0 )
Taian over by Gavernment
Principal Repaymeniz on Guaranieed Forasn Debt CER TR ] o
Taken gwer by Gevamiment
Repayments on frem Other Domestic 5810000 0.00 0.0
Craditors
Repaymants on Barmowinga Fom Olher Damasiic B 0600 Y] 00
Creditars - Private Entarprizas
SE20000 000 [F151]
Repaymants on Bormowings om GOlher Domeshc SEI0100 — 0.0 o |
Cresdiines - Pulils Enterpnses
TOTAL a0 a0 |
I Diher payments
ltem Description [term Coda Current Pariod Previous Period
Kshs Kshs
tReserves ZRIOT00 0.00 0.0 |
Gl pancy Ressrves 2870200 0.00 000
Cagilal Transler bo Non Financial Public Enlerprises | 2620100 od A1)
2apital Transfer to Pubic Finanaal Insseutions end 2ES0200 oo ~ 0.0 |
Enilerprisss,
Capital Transfer ta Private Nonfirancd Enterprzas FRICIOA 0,00 e |
5% Requited Expenses 2590100 T o0
| 23%aEn 0 B0 |
TOTAL oan 0,00 |
228 Bank Balances
ftem Description ltem Code Current Period Previous Period |
: Kshs Kahs
Spedal Accounls B510000 1.884.55 41,871 B2 85 |
Treasury Bank Accounts (Exchequer and CRF ESZ0000 0,00 o |
Aceaimis)
| Fecurrent Bank Azcounls “E530000 LENFRET 793,106.40 |
Eﬁ. it Bank Accounts ES40000 35,751,037 .60 111,214,351,00
Account BESM000 A4, 104 847 85 | R E [
Bank Accaunts B570000 0,00 0 |
sign Curency end Fareign D E580101 0.00 000
Eumig Currency and Foreign O [EElEnE] [0 ]
TOTAL B0 302 155 85 91 556 51T
438  Cash Balances
Item De=cription Hem Code Current Period Previous Period
Kshs Kahs |
| Cash in Hand e 1,755 BA0 0 .00 |
Fereign Currency and Foreign E580201 000 o0
TOTAL 1,755,040 |
23 Accounis Receivablos - Qutstanding Imprest and Clearence Accounts
Item Desscription ftem Cade Current Period Previous Parlod
Kahs Hshs
Domaslic Deblars £ Advancas B7 10000 0.00 0,00
| D = [5 L] &0 |
Fareign Debiors & Advances Bra0000 @00 T3]
Dihear Debiors & Pre-payments E740000 06d |
Imprests [X=] ELLLEEETEy
| Agency Acoounts BT 70000 [ (1]
PagaBial 7
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Wem Description ltem Code Current Period
I BE & Clearance Acount E760000 (15 ] .00 |
O Currend A [Systam r | Graoong (1] 600 |
TOTAL [T T/a5.635.05 |
24, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Item Description em code Current Period Previous Period
Kaha Kahs
Oilhar Liabiilies 7320000 TS G130565 | 338,130817.5 |
%Tm 730000 _ 5458364 40 | 45,280 000 00 |
o TIRO000 .00 oo
Gysiem %mﬂ Liablias Alcs .00 o |
TOTAL Ad0,559, 760,05 | = aBa3ToAN1.55 |
28, FUND BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD
Ttem Description llem Code Current Period Previous Period
FEhs. Hahs
| ing Balance Bank A T EEETTR0 | Gi0Araiead |
728 003 “TEE |
Ealance Receivables - Imprest and Clearancs | 29 1,095,63568 | 1 54.374.50
ing Balance - 1] {30,310, 4 1 7.55) JEE3,00]
TOTAL 04,881,785 00 A7, 1.
26.PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
Ttem Description iem Code Current Period Previous Period
Fahs Hahs
Counly Transiers T910300 [ a0 |
@m 5910200 17 8000 109321505
TOTAL EBITE 1,009,21585
Paga T T
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Diffarences Utilization
2 b £ duath4e ) :
i 0,00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00
z 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00
3 0.00 6.00 6.00 0.00 6.00
4 0.00 6.00 .00 0.00 25,081,504 523.10
B 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
B 0.00 0.00 B.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
fram Foreign 7 B85, 00 0.00 0.00 765,000,000.00 764,000,815.80 184,20 | 100.00%
Frocesds from Sales of Assats B 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Reimburserments and Refunds [ 000 [T a] 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Retums of Equiy Holdings i 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Dither R 11 1055,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,055,000,000.00 ~ B73,305571.45 | 1B1,604,428.55 B2.79%
\B20,00:,000.00 0.00 0.00 :ﬂpﬂ@g () 26,729,896,810.35 | (24,900,858, §1 0.35) | 14B8.58%
PAYMENTS
| Compensabon of Employses 12 533,088.180.00 0.00 333,000,000.00 B66,004, 180,00 665,250,295.50
Use of & And Services 13 14,569,089 608.00 .00 1 mm.mmq_ﬁa 14,724,786,868.00 13,613 491,790.55
!.Im,EE..mu 14 . .00 .00 0.00 0.00
Transiers o Other Gevernment Unks | 15 7.073,000,000.00 0.00 40,000,000.00 7.113,000,000.00 7 026 588 122.70 A
" Oither Granis and Transiers 16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .
Social Security Benefits 7 .00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
[ Acquisition of Assels 18 5,732.083,674.50 0.00 577,587.50 5,732,631,562.00 4,550 54 742,084,300.60 BT 08%
" Finance Costs, including Loan Interest | 19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Repayment al on Domastic | 20 .00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
| and Foreign Borrawing o
Dther payments 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% |
Total 27,707,241,760.50 0.0 525,264,879.50 | 26,256,506,640.00 54.15% |

Pasier on: 33-ALG-2031 G540
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Frinted Estimate |

Suppiementary

~Final Approved

Budget Utilization % of
Transfar Estimates Estimate (Hat) Differances Utilization
2 b G B=s+hic e f=d-a g=eld¥%
1 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Praceeds from Domestic and Foreign | 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00%
Grants o
Exchequer releases [ 0.00 .00 0.00 0,60 24.127.116,154.15 | (24.127,116,154.15) 0.00%
I Transiers fFom Other Government & 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% |
Entitias -,

[ Proceeds from Domestic Borrowings | 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% |
Proceeds Foreign Bomowings 7 T65.000,000.00 0.00 0.00 765,000,000.00 764,809,815 80 184.20 | 100,00% |
Procasds from Sales of Assels ] 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Reimburssments and Refunds ] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00° 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Ratums of Equity Holdings 0 0.00 0.00 6.60 0.00 _ 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Cthat Receipts 11 1,055,000,000.00 0.00 0.0 ,055,000,000.00 B73,385,571.45 181,56 55 BZ.75%

Total 1,820,000,000.00 0.00 0.00  B20,000,000.00 35.765,511,541.40 | (23,045,511,581,40) | 1415.60% |
PAYMENTS ] =

“Eomgansation o] Employees 12 0.00 0.00 ~0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% |

ise of goods and Senvices 13 | 14,435 878,951.00 0.00 0.00 | 14,439,878,951.00 13,557,094,025.85 | 762,784,025.35 B4 58%
“Bubsidies 4 _ 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0. 000 0.00%

Transfars to Other Government Units | 15 7,073,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,073,000 E,964 066,122.70 BB,091 877.30 B8 T6%
Gther Grants and Transfers 16 .00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0,00 0.00%
Bocial Securily Benefils 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

uisilion of Assels 18 5.731,676,387.00 0.00 0.00 5,731,676,987.00 | 4 009.850,574.40 .__E__Euﬁ..ww BT .06%
llmm!|.§ Cosis, including Loan Intarast | 19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 _ 0.00%
Repayment of Principal on Domestic | 20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00%
and Foreign Borrowing
" Giher paymants Fi 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% |
Total 27,244,555 338,00 0.00 0.00 | 27,244 565,998.00 25631,016,746.756 | 1,612,606,611.25 94.08% |
Poriad & 1 DEcEd
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Printed Estimate | Roallocation ! Supplementary Final Approved Actual Budgaet Utilization
Transfer Estimate (Net)
8 b g
Tax Receipts == 0.0 0.00 0.00
Social Security Conbibubion 0.60 .00 0.00 ;
; 0.00 0.00 0.00 ;
0.00 0.00 564,368,368 65 B4, 388, .am%
Transfars fram 0.0 0,04 ' 0.00 ;
_ Procaets from Domestic Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00
Procesds from Foreign Bomowings __0.og 0.00 0.00
_Proceeds from Sales of Assets 0.00 0.00 £.00
—Reimbureameants and Refunds 0.00 0.00 f
"Relums of Equity Holdings 0.00_ .00 0.00 _
Giher Recaipts _ 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 £54,388,368.85 {964,388, 368.95) 0.00%
Compensation of Employees 2 | 333088.180.00 0.00 E&6,058,180.00 885,258,295.80 :
d#l_ﬁmﬁu 5 ] 128,230,558, 0.00 155,687,292 00 384,507, 547,00 355.307.764.00 28 510,1682.10 :
idi 14 0.00 0.00 0.00 _
Transfers to Oiher Govemment Units | 15 0.00 0.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,500 00 42 0od, 00000 105.00%
Oithar Granls and Transfars & 0.00 0.00 0.00
Social Securlly Banefis 0.00 .00 0.00
Acoulsition of Assels 377,587.50 0.0 G30,683.00 264,482 00
| Finance Costs, 0.00 0,60 .
0.00 0.00 0,00
and Foreign Bormowing
" iher payments .00 0.00 F. _ 0.00 _
462,586 422.50 .00 528,264,879.50 B61,951,302.00 064,346, 743.80 27,604,558.20
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BEE0101 - Minisiry HQ Deposit EanhF.E |

. Cument Period:  JUL-20 To, ﬂ;ﬂi? LEad

Economic ltem

Current Period Previous Period
Opening Balance 338,130,417.65 473,503,663.00 |
Transfers of retentions during the year B5Z,681,517.10 §79,341,629.10)
Payments made out of deposit account during the year 455,710,539.10 1,014,815,084.45
Closing Balance 445,101,395 65 338,130,417 64
Principal Secretary Principal Accounts
Controller
The Statement has been prepared, reviewed and approved by the following:
Prepared By: Diata:
Reviewed By: Diate:
Approved By Date:
Puga 1 ol
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JULrElEI To JUN21 -

Program Item Description Approved Budget | Actual Payments Variance
BO00000000 “Detault - Mon Pregrammalic .00 37,590.40 (R
3310000 _| Goods and Servicas .00 0,00 — 6.0 |
9430000 | Inberest an Bomoeing From Oiher .00 o0 0.0
Govemmend Linits
SESUOU0 | Granle ard Giner Translers o Imernational GRT] .00 a0 |
Cimganizalions
170000 | Acquisiion of Ened Capitel Assets 000 [ oo |
Bel00a0 | 5 i 0.0 T.00 |
BE50000 | ﬁ'ﬂmamrﬁgnu L1060 ai.sm.ﬁ'__ﬂ_ﬂm
0 020H0000 I-In-uuhg DOevelopment and Human 3,520, 76,047.00 3,138 B30, 120, 135.518.00
Setilement
F190000 | Wages and Galary Gonibutons FH0.607,237.00 j X ERES
Goads and Senaces o Egiﬁ.aﬂm 17 15 448 5
Foutne Mainisnance 7,487 551.00 537782740 @
220000 | (arants and Ofher Transfers & intamasonal T oo
| Owganizafions
GEa0000 | Grants & Transter To Oiher Govt Units B 7,000,000, 00 50,000, 000,00 | 3 [
(V] Dond Ca 08.00 "_'1,un§,?ﬁ‘!ﬁds 250,431,
B105000000 Urban and tan Development 24,007,479,007,00 | 23,161,164,490.45 45,314,542.55
2110000 ard Lalary Conbibulions iF] T2.00 _&1 405, 309,60 _‘r'gu.?uz.ﬂ
7290000 | Goods and Bervicas. 74, 51700 | 13503, 705.629.15 | 762,703,881.85
& Ml enence B, 616, J’!ﬁnﬂ? 35 540,00 |
SEA0000 | Granks and Diher Translers o Imermational 0.0 == ] 0.0 |
Crganizalisng
FE30000 | Granks & Transfer To Other Gout. Units 8,456,000, 000,00 ] 3270 |  49,001,817.50
2710000 | Benehis .00 B.00 0.00 |
F190000_| o of Fieed Lapil ARsets 5311.457,806.00 | 5,164,229, 566,95 — S, za.asﬁnﬁ
0106000000 General Admi Planndng and :m..:n,ssz.ﬁ-h 296,065,843.10 A, 'I'IE'HI-I.H
,ﬂppuns-mnu
F110000 | Wages and Salary Loniribusons F12.760,931,00 | 270, 35| 2. 7A0450.75
10000 | Goods and Serices B2.064, 734,00 16,044, q H8.85
F230000 rAERENCE 33852000 | 415945180 557 077,20
F710000 | Socal Securily Beneks 0. noo | 0
{10000 gﬂ_ﬂ_m'ﬁ?lﬁmuﬂ Caplial Assets 165, 358,00 ~168,015.00 | 343.00 |
OZ180a0000 0.00 o010 0.00
F310000_| Goods and Senaces . 0.00 B.00 |
F270000 | Roune Maimenance .00 )
TRIO0O0 | Grants & Transier To-0@er Gowk, Unlis 0.00 0.00 B.00 |
Grand Total 0,236,506,690,00 | 46,59 BE0.5 | 1,600,614,510.08
The Statement has been prepared, reviewed and approved by the following:
Preparad By: Dt
Reviswad By: Osta:
Approved By: . Diate:
Paintad oec J0-ALRG-F0ZT 03344 Poge 1011
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DH:rlﬁE-nn
Delguit ¥alue | Hon- 800 31,580.40 [EEEL]
Detault " an Programmabs 0,00 TT50040 | [31,59040)
Hoaging lopment and Human L] 0.00 .0
Seitiemant
08000000 | Urban and Metropailtan I 000 000
nit
094000100 [nance and Procuremant 27.053,646.00 6,524,695.85 1,428,849.15
Services
Tinanan000 | Housng Desalopment and Human 740, 59200 73,181, 141.60 76,300.20 |
Setlllement
TiDE000000 | General Administraton Flanning and 4,873,114.00 SANGEEADS | T,400,556.95
. ) Sendces -
410840002040 Headguariers Administrativa 302,680,132.00 207,066,187 .60 5 E13,544.40
Sarvices
Diefauil - Mon Programmatic 0.6 Goo| ____  0d0|
0102000000 | Housing Development and Human 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sattl=mant
Oi0G000000 | Genaral Adminatation Planing and S58 AIBAN00 | 253,6171,091.05 i 1431,381.55
Support Serboss
Fi05000000 | Urban and MetopaiEn 7,231,603.00 —9,549,136.55 3 BUZ556,45
Develcpment - - =
1034000300 Government Estatas Dopartmant 200,577,048.00 204,546,517.90 4,631,330.10
GI0E000000 | General m_rutﬂm"ﬁmirﬂ and - YT n‘ﬁ. 8400 | 1,005884.00
Samices
02000000 | m Develapment and Humn TB.5T7 G480 | 205,952 20160 | "5.!-2&"44&1{:'
1034000400 ‘Eium Upgrading and Housing E8,648,051,00 B7,360,785.45 1,207,264 55
MEmwn:
Di0z00a000 | Housing Developmant and Human B8,640,051.00 T, - 1,430,355 08
Setlement
TEIma00n | Geners Administrasan Planning and Gl 151, 12200 | - TA51, 122.00)
— Buppart Services e T TR
1094000500 ng D al TEBA00 50700 | 187,854,670.45 | 1,;94%.95
103000000 | Housing Davesopment and Human 09.597.00 | 187.654.670.45 | 1444
Seftlernent
] 0| Urban and Metopalien 0.00 000 [T
Drauetaprrant ! =
1084000600 0.00 o.00 000
TOSt00000 | Urban and Metropalilan (1Y) Gl .00
Development
06000000 | Ganeral Adminstabon Planning and “Ho0 0.00 0,00
Su Sapviges .
T4000TO0 — 31,042,143.00 2, 55 1.A09,708.45
DI05000000 | Urban and Matopotan T 042,143 00 5564043855 | 1.101704.45
—— Developrent -l
1034000500 5,374,563.00 §,157,559.65 1,217.023.35
BGZ00a000 | Houwsng Develpment and Human 0.00 a0 0.0 |
Betllemeant
TA05000000 | Urban and Metropolitan E37a5E300|  B.157 55965 | 17,063.35
Developmant (S St
1094000500 1E073 ~{E,501,234.30 1,208, 308.70
mm_'ﬂmﬁm‘ﬁiﬁwn 1 FE] “%1 A1 734,90 1
Ti0En00008 | Housing Development and Human 0,00 nia ooa |
Sattlernent
Dioa000maD | ard (1101 .00 .00
= Sugpot Servoss — i -
1084001000 Bacial Infrastructsne: 11,151, 323.00 14,081,850.80 £3,432.20
06000000 | Urban and Metrapolitan 11,151, 57000 1,081 #4340
. ment
1094001100 Finance and Management 0.00 ouoa 0.00
Sarvices
(IS0 | Urtan and Metropalian an 0.00 a0 |
A0 120 j0.0 e EE A | 12405880
1054001200 UWW Investments A4Z2,010.00 219,956.10 122,083
Fns0D0000 | Leban and Metropolitan Azz0m0m | —SRase0 | 123,053.80
— Development S
1034001300 Urban Development 37,656, 079.00 37,504 ,814.60 __ﬁw |
35550055 | Uin and Mgl T i

Printed ory 30-ALIG-T021 (&l
Prinfad bry: MUHLULF

Pagn 1ol 4



Prnled a5 30-4L0-2021 09:43
Printed by: MLIHLILF

Drevelopmant
1004001400 Urban Epcial Infrastructura and 1,164, 587. 1,081, 528,55 10 05845
Uitilities
D10GO00000 | General Admenisiraton Planming and 0.4 0.00 o.0d
Su Senvicas
0105{00000 | Uroan and Mesopaitan 1,185 587,040 106150865 | w040
Developmant
1024001500 0.00 0.00 000
0030000 | Heusing Develoament and Human 000 0.00 nod
Salllsment
0218000000 a.00 0.00 .00
1054001600 .00 0.00 04 |
CI0E000000 | General Administrasan Planning 8nd nan 0.00 ]
Sarvicag
01020003000 | Housng ant and Human 0.00 0.00 [T
Setilamant
= 216000000 0.00 n.a0 003
1024001700 0.00 0.0 0.00
0102000000 | Hawsing Devalopment and Human 0,00 .00 0,80
Satlamant
0216000000 o0g VT[] 000
05000000 | Uran and Melraportan GITE] 0.an [ i)
t
“OT0G00G000 | Genera Admnisiralion Planming and B0 0.00 aan
Suppor Services
1084001800 40, 00,00 42,000,000,60 0,000.0
005000000 | Urgan and Malrapobtan #0,000.000.00 |  42,000,000.00 0,
Di=velopment e
1084001900 E 41,381,191.00 40,828,718.10 B52.471.90
07102000000 ;:T;j:ina Bgwefopment and Human 41,381 191.00 20628, 11810 E52,471.00
ement
10940027100 §,653,490.00 6,517,743.80 138, T46.10
H10200060d | Housing Dewsapment and Human B, 653, 450,00 6,517,743.90 135, 74670
Sammerant
1054100100 1 0.00 0.00 000
0105000000 | Urban and Metropoitan .00 600 000
Developmani )
itad1d0za0 0.00 0.60 000
0105000000 | Urkien and Matrapaitan 0.0 a.00 6T
Diewelopmant
1084100300 0.00 0.0 (]
0105000000 | Urban and Metropoiiian 0.00 T (7]
Deszlopmant
1054100400 0.0 0.6 0.00
05300000 | Urban and Metropolilan [WTili] 0 .00
Dovelopment
1054100500 Kenya Municipal Programma It 306,000,000,00 305,899,595, 40 0&0
O10G00I0a0 aneral Adminiakaban Planning 8nd 000 a0 000
Suppart Senvices
0105000000 | Urban and Metrapoitan 308,00, 0600.00 05, 555 950 40 (1]
1054100800 Henya Infarmal Setilement €51,534, 351,00 110,232, B07.00 £41,301,444.00
| Improvement Projeet (KISIF)
0000000 Fﬁm Development and Human 051 53425100 110,933, 541,301, 44400
R [vali] an and Melrapaktan .00 non 0.00
A Development - i i
1054100700 Mational Slum Upgrading Praject 1 0000 170 .00
Q102000000 | Housng opmand and Hueman Xi] 170, 000, 000,00 004
Seitlement
1094100300 [T 0,00 1,60
OT0I0G0G30 | Housing Develapmen] and Human 0.00 00 |
e Sefliefment == i
1054100000 Mational Secretarial for Heman A0,000,000,00 36,741, 84500 3,258, 155,00
Settlement
0102000000 | ﬁ,—mﬂ Deviapment and Human 40,000, 000,00 36,741,045.00 398 15500
Erment
TT0B000000 | General Adminsirabon Planning and .00 0.0 .00
Eenvices
1084101000 0.00 0.50 0.00
02000000 | Hauwsng Davelopmant and Human 0.00 a.00 0o
o Safllament sz e o
1094101100 Civll Servant Housing Scheme 237,000,000.00 200,000,000,00 37,000,000.00
Fund
DI0Z000000 | Housng Development and Human 237,000,000.00 | 200.000,000.00 37,000,000,00
1024101200 Maintonance of Govemment Pool 1,018,004,000.00 073,308 5T0.65 144 E04,479.35
Houses AR k) et e o
002000000 | Housing Devalopment and Human | 1,018,000,000.00 73,355 57065 144 B04, 479,35 |
Page 2 ol 4



= Setllememrl i T K
1084101300 . :
i D102000000 | Housing Developmant and Human 000 | 0.00 060
Settiomant — s
064901400 Construction of Housing Units for 334,000,000.00 330,192,562.60 (18286260}
Mational Police & Kenya Prison
702000000 | Ficusing Bevelopmant and Fumar e TN R N LT
Setflement
1094101500 0.00 0,00 0,00
UA05000000 | Urban and Melropolilan 000 000 a0 |
1094 101600 Construction of Vislon 2030 155,000,000.00 152,652,959.65 2,347,040.35
Flagship and ESP Markets
T105000000 | Urban and Melropolitan 755,000,000.00 | 152,662,959.65 7,347 040,35
Dewvalopment |
fon4i01700 0.00 000 0.00
DI05000000 | Ukiban and MetrapoiRan 0.00 0.a0 000
il
1084101800 Hairobi Metrapalilan Services 1,405,000,000.00 | 1,483,218,347.10 4,780,652.90
Impravement Sl
0905000000 | Urean fian O00,00000 | 1,483,219,347.10 |  1,/B085280
Development
164101500 0.o00 0.00 0.00
TI05000000 | Urban end Matropoitan 0.6 0.00 0.00
Develapment
1004102000 o 000 0.00
005000000 | Urban and Malropolien o 0.00 0.00
1084702100 Construction of Kerugoya Kutus &4,000,000,00 57,974,090.85 “25.009.15
aslormwater dralng
S50 Urban nd Melropchtar IR | S IR
e Deveioprent ]
1094102200 0,00 .60 B.O0
T05000000 | Urban and Merapalien .00 nog
Develapment i
1004102300 .00 0.00 0.00
OifS000000 | Unban and Meiropalizn 000 0.00 .00
Davelopment
1054102400 0.00 0.00 [ Xa]i]
T05000000 | Urban and Metmpaitan 0.00 600 “6.00 |
Devel
1004102500 Construction of Chaka Market 355,000,000,00 350,17 oo 4, 023,737.00
DI05000000 | Urtan and Matropoitan 358, (00, 000.00 350,1 4, BE3737.
Dieveloament
S| Belorit - Voo Programnahc 5 55T R
CA0E00I000 | General Administraton Planmng ard 0.0 .00 .00
e Sugpart Sefvicad o
o4 102700 0.00 000 .00
DI05000000 | Urban and Meropoitan o.00 “0ag o0 |
Development
1054104000 0.00 0.00 .00
Ti05000000 | Urban and Meiropollan n.oa 0,00 0.00
Davelopmant
1084104100 [T .00 0.0
(05000000 | Urban and Metopalitan Ban 0,00 oo
M'H —
1634104200 0.00 [ 0,00
0105000000 | Urban and Melropelitan 0.00 0.00 LETE]
N ——— Development
1004104300 ] 0.50 0 |
0105000000 | Urban and Mebopaitan nan 0.00 o.o0
Develaprment
1004104800 0.00 0.00 0.00
T105000000 | Urban and Melropoitan 0.00 Y] 0.00
Develogpment
1034104500 0.0:0 0.00 0.00
05000000 | Urban and Matrepalilan 0.00 000 .00
ment ]
1034105000 Kanya Uban Programme [ienUF) 7,470,300,000.00 | 6,652, 3.50 M
0705000000 | Uvban and T.iﬁﬁ%ﬁ B.852,07 1 B1B, 226, 45,50
Develapmeanil
1084105100 .00 0.00 0.00
0218000000 o0 0,00 a0 |
1084 105200 [T 0,00 o
213000000 0.00 6.00 (]
1094105300 Constructon of Affardabie &78,721,087.00 472,775 560,40 5,945,536 60
Housing Unit
102000000 __| Housing Develapment and Hurrsan 47872108700 | AT41I55G0A0 | 594552660
B 200 021 0 —_—



= Ealllement T
1084105400 Construction of Social Housing 0.00 Q.00 0.00
Linits
Diazana000 | Housing Develonment and Human Y] a0 000
Salfiamant
1094105500 Develepmant of Appropriate 165,000,000.00 164,287 441,75 T02,558"
Building Material and Technology
| Howsin |
DOE000000 %nﬂ Devalapment and Hurman 165, 000, 000,00 164,257,441 75 72, B0 25
Setllemant
41 05800 Construction ol Glkomba Market wu 299, T29,548.70 #10,450.30
OI05000000 | Urban and Metopoiian 000,00 | 288, 720,5468.70 270,450.30
= Dgvelapment
1024105000 Fiadgwalopment of Githurai Market 304, 600, 000,00 FEA 367 043 60 1,632 856,40
a1uﬁm_—_‘aﬂ'"?ﬁmna figmapattan 300,000,000000 760 35T 04550 1,632, 556,40
[evaiopment
1054106000 Redevelopment of Kamukunji 40,000,000,00 39,590,724.60 403 375,40
Markat
E10L000000 | Uroan and Mebooolitn &0, 000,000.00 9E_ 550,734 &0 4 575 80
Davelopmant
1094106100 Redevalopment of Dagoreti B0,000,000.00 79,863,815 75 E435
Market
G10500 Urban and Malropoitan i (0, 600,60 TH,909,615.75 B3
Develepment
1084106200 .00 0.0 0.00 |
T1O7000000 | Housing Oevalopmenl and Himan 0.00 tan ]
- Seftlement AT
1084106300 0.04 .00 []
0102000000 | Housing Devdopmznt and Human Q.00 003 .00
Satifemant
104106500 0.0 0.0 0.00 |
Urhan and Matropciitan 0.0 o.0a (]
e Devefapment S —
10B4 106600 Etratesis Infervantions 13,000,000,000.00 | 13,000,000,000.00 000
O105000000 | Urban and feiropaitan 13.000,000,000.00 | 13,000,000, 000,00 a0
——— Deraiopmant
1024106700 Construction of Meru-Makutana 10,000, 000,00 10,006,000.60 (i)
Trunk Sewer Line
002000000 | Houging Develapmerd and Human 10,000,000.0F 70,000, 000,00 oo
. Setfamant
1004106800 Myangiongo Market B0, 030, 000.00 7E5.064,007.50 BOE,Ea2. 10
0105000000 | Urban and Melapditan B, 000, DO0.00 75,054, 607 50 505, 55210
Diaveiapment SR
T0EL 106000 Miuthithi Market ] o 19,959, 590.90 0.10
108000000 | Uban and Metropolitan 00,003.00 18,969,633.50 010
Davelopmant
1034107100 Consiructien Of Uhure Business I50,000,000.00 260, 000,000.00 .00
Fark Kigumu
162000090 | Housing Developmeant and Fuman 250,000,000.00 250,000,000 .00
Satilemant
1004105700 Development af Markets in 145,000, 000,00 144,599 476,40 53360
Nairabi
005000000 | Urban amnd Metrapalitan 145,000,000, 144 599 47640 52360
Devalopment _
1084000 :rm Informal Settlemant 50,000,000,00 0,00 £0,000, 600,060
ent P
O] | Heirg Devslt s Fiman 53,000,000 00 ] 0,000,000 60
Sestlement
1054108500 Mathari Kvodarn Market 0,000,000.00 B0, 000,60 1,00
0105000000 | Uan and Metrapoltan 0, 000,000.00 B, ; Y]
Grand Total 26,236,506,640000 | 26,505,052, 060.85 1,540,612,578.05
The Statement has been prepared, reviewned and approved by the following:
Prepaned By Crate:
Rewewead By: Date:
Approved By: Diabe:
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Actual Payments
Budget
31,590,480 31, 6B0.A0)
i '—“"—m_‘“JEA!W
B02000008 %824, 746,047.00 | 3.130,830, 13000 7a0,1
3,174,432 431,00 1,530,382 042.05 | G35,0%5BE0E] |
1,268,953 005 00 F,‘ imlii.ﬂE 'Iﬂﬁﬁiﬁ
AR5 AT4,577.00 478,370, RO
1 Lirban and Metropoiitan Dovelopment 34,007 479,091,00 845,314 54241 |
T105010000 | Uirban Mabilly and Transpon 000 B |
Giasaamon ning & infrasinackine TEAEAS0137600 | 5,104 00032340 | GA9a08100 |
BTORGH3000 | Urban Pannig, Eovesiment and Fsearch BB43,177.65600 | B,000,%55,175.05 | mmﬂg
CI0SES0M00 | lUrban Devecpman [
DA08060000 [T [ e |
OI0E00059S Goneral Administration Planning &nd 350 351,853.00 | 196,065 843,10 4,780, 70880
Suppart Services L
0100 000 Admiisiation, Flanning & Suppor Sances 300,281,552 00 256,065,843, 10 4,195,708,80 |
DZ18000000 (1] B.00 (5]
[T5] (L] [
0218020000 BB 1] e |
LR 0,00 1]
Grand Total | 35,235,506,640.00 6 455,502 040 85 1,840,614 578.0
The Stalemant has been prepared, reviewed and approved by the following:
Prepared By: Date:
Raviewed By: Drate:
Approved By: Date:
Page 1ol
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: BRI
BANKL I % CENTRAL

KU ¥aA . BANE OF
KENYA SoSpa N e KINVA
Hile Selaxsie Avenue
July 15, 2021 PO, Bux 60000 - GO200 Mairobi, Kenys

Telephone: 2860000, Fay: 140102

CERTIFICATE OF BALANCES

Customer: 139523 STATE DEPT FOR HOUSING URBAN DEV

Balance Date: 30 JUN 2021

Account No | Account Name Currency | Balance

1000395516 | REC-STATE DEPT FOR HOUS URB DEV KES 43,441,647 40
1000395583 | DEV-STATE DEPT FOR HOUS UREAN DEV | KES 40,983,072.45
1000355672 | DEP-STATE DEPT FOR HOUS URBAN DEV | KES 431,993 21125
1000395737 | CBKI65-STATE DEPT FOR HOU URE DEV KES 0.00
1000396358 | RENT FROM GOVT BLDG HOUSING AlA KES 2,583,338.95
1000396938 | NAIROBI METRO SERV IMPR PROJ CFUND | KES 45,738.00
1000396946 | KENYA URBAN SUPPORT PR IDA AG1340 0 | KES 269,314,239.35
1000396954 | NAIROBI METR SERV IMPR, PRJ NaMSIP KES 1.884.95

Lawrence Rweria Joyce Masieku(Ms)

Authorised Signatory ' Authorised Signatory
Banking Services Division Banking Services Division






